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National Government Affirmative Action Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

1. Acronyms, Abbreviations and Glossary of Terms

A: Acronyms and Abbreviations

AAG

CBK

cEo

DG

ICPAK

IPSAS

NT

NGAAF

OCOB

OAG

OSHA

PFM

PS

PPE

PSASB

SDGs

SAGAs

SC

SCAC

WB

Affirmative Action Group

Central Bank of Kenya

Chief Executive Officer

Director General

Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Kenya

International Public Sector Accounting Standards

National Treasury

National Government Affirmative Action Fund

Offlce of the Controller of Budget

Office of the Auditor General

Occupational Safety and Health Act of 2007

Public Finance Management

Principal Secretary

Propefi Plant & Equipment

Public Sector Accounting Standardg, Board

Sustainable Development Goals ,,

Semi-Autonomous Government Agencies

State Corporations

State Corporation Advisory Committee

World Bank

B: Glossary of Terms

Fiduciary Management - Members of Management directly entrusted with the
responsibility of financial resources of the organisation.

Comparative Year - Means the prior period. r:, ,.:.
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2. Entity Information and Management

(a) Background information

The Etional Government Amrmative Action Fund (NGAAF), successor to the Afflrmative Action

Soci+l Development Fund (AASDF) is a Semi-Autonomous Government Agency (SAGA) in the
Mini+W of Public Service, Gender and Affirmative Action (Revised Executive Order No 1 of
2023) was enacted through a Legal Notice No. 24 of the Public Finance Management act,2012
anO potisneo on 13th February 2015.

The Fund is governed by the Public Finance Management Ad., 2012, the Public Finance

Man gement (National Government Affirmative Action Development Fund), Regulation, 2016.

Att e National level, the Fund is managed by Board of Directors who are supported by a
Sec riat headed by the Chief Executive Officer while at the County level, it has offices in all

the forty-seven Counties (47) managed by County Coordinators.

Principal Activities

P pion of grant funds for socio-economic empowerment.-of affirmative action groups;
Wo n, Youth and Persons with Disability, needy children at.the counties in line with the Vision

)b(

ii

through the following activities;
Support to women economic empowerment initiatives through provision of funds for
table banking, savings and credit cooperative organizations (SACCOS)

Provision of bursary and scholarships for access of education opportunities among
vulnerable groups; school going orphaned, child-headed house-holds and special

needs children, out of school vulnerable youth for skill training

Support of value addition initiatives in agribusiness, cottage industries owned by

affirmative action groups

Promotion of talent development among the youth involved in arts, music and sports

Support to programmes on access to services on gender-based violence through
establishment of rescue and counselling centres and suppoft to survivors of Gender

based violence

Sensitization of communities on gender-based violence including, female genital

mutilation, child marriages or forced marriages

Establishment of drugs and substance abuse rehabilitation and counselling centres in

conjunction with the relevant Government agencies

Enterprise training and financial start-ups support to rehabilitated individuals

Conducting civic education and community sensitization on National Government

affirmative action programmes and policies

i
1,l
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(c) Key Management

The National Government Afflrmative Action Fund is management under the following key

or9ans:

i. The Principal Secretary, State Department for Gender and Affirmative Action, Ministry of
Public Service Gender and Affirmative Action

ii. The Board of Directors

iil. A Secretariat headed by the Chief Executive Officer

(d) FiduciaryManagement

The key management personnel who held office during the year ended 30th June, 2023 and
who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

No. Desiqnation Name
1 Chief Executive Officer Roy Sasaka Telewa
2 Director Finance & Administration Maqdaline Kipkenei

3 Head of Finance Serah M. Muchunga
4 Head of Programmes Jackson Kayaqa

5 Head of Communication Jesse Niuquna
6 Head of Procurement David Kioko
7 Head of Human Resource Abdirizak Issa

(e) FiduciaryOvercightArrangements

1. Audit & Risk Committee

The Audit & Risk Committee's responsibilities include the following:

i. Provide oversight of the Fund internal audit function

ii. Evaluate internal and external audit reports and make appropriate recommendations

iii. Review the levels of compliance with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements

iv. Conducting periodic internal checks on key processes to ensure compliance with the
established procedures, and report to the Board on the findings and recommendations
for improvements

v. To analyse and address the risks associated with the key processes

vi. To report to the Board of any financial concerns and irregularities

vii. Overseeing response to audit queries
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Reviewing annual budgets schedules prepared by Accounts in line with the PFM Act,
2012 (NGAAF), Regulations,2016

Advise on budget appropriation

Reviewing the secretariat annual procurement plan

To oversee preparation of financial reports and ensure that repofts are accurate and

timely

Ensure compliance with PFM Act, 2012

Ensure prudent utilization of disbursed Funds

Resource mobilization/fundraising initiatives

2. ance and Admanistration Committee

The
follo

nance and Administration Sub-Committee is responsible to the Board of Directors for the
ng:

lt.

iii.

iv

vi

3 arliamentary Oversight Committee

e Parliamentary Oversight Committee is responsible in examining reports from the
ditor General, ensuring transparency and accountability within the entity. Fufther, the
mmittee is responsible for reviewing and implementing recommendation from the
vestment Committee.

(o Entity Headquarters
P.O. Box 48274- 00L00
ABSA P|aza HoUSe
Loita Street
Nairobi, Kenya

(g Entity Contacts
Telephone : 020 230007 96
E-mail : ceo@ngaaf.go. ke
Website: www. ngaaf.go. ke

(h Entity Bankers
1. Central Bank of Kenya

Haile Selassie Avenue
P.O. Box 60000
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

vl
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2, Co-operative Bank
Parliament Road Branch
P.O. Box 5772
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

3. Equity Bank of Kenya
Upper Hill
P.O. Box 75104 - 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

:l
4, Kenya Commercial Bank

Moi Avenue
P.O. Box 48400
GPO 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

5. National Bank of Kenya
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 72866
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

(i) Independent Auditor
Auditor-General
Office of the Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, Monrovia Street
P.O. Box 30084
GPO 00100
Nairobi, Kenya
E-mail : info@oagkenya.go.ke

(r) Principal Legal Adviser
The Attorney General
State Law Office and Department of Justice
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 40112
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya
E-mail : Communications@ag.go.ke

vll
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3. The Board of Directors

Rachael Mbula Musyoki, CHRP(K)

Experience: Born in 1974. Over 27 years'
experience; 10 years in County Government of Kilifi
working in 4 different departments as a county
Executive/County Minister including the office of the
Governor and Public Service Management, the
Depaftment of Health Services, Department of
Devolution, Public Service and Disaster Management
and the Department of Education and ICT till October
31st 2023. 17 years at the Kenya Ports Authority
(KPA), in various positions within Finance Department
since 1996 until 2013.

Appointed as a Board Director of Women Enterprise
Fund (WEF) via Gazette Notice No. 2384 of 2023, of
the Public Finance Management ACf (No. 18 of
2014.

Appointed as a Chairperson of the National
Government Affirmative Action Fund (NGAAF) via
Gazette Notice No. 8239 of 2023, of the Public
Finance Management ACT (No. 18 of 2014 to replace
Mrs. Florence Kalekye Kiriinya

Qualifications: Ongoing PhD on Intergovernmental
Relations (Governance), MSc in HR, BBA- HR,

Bachelors in Business Administration, Certification on
M &E, Certified CHRP (K)

Experience: Born in 1959. Over 35 years' experience
in the Office of Auditor General (formerly KENAO)
serving in different capacities including audit of
various Government Ministries and Departments,
managing the Capacity building function of KENAO,
Served as Director spearheading Strategy and
Operational Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation
functions of OAG, and as Director of the Internal Audit
among other responsibilities. Worked with the IDI a

body corporate of the International Organization of
Supreme Audit Institutions (INTOSAI) as a

Programme Manager in Nonruay (20t2-2014),
charged with a responsibility of developing capacity
building audit programmes aimed at improving
quality audits and service delivery within the African

ing Supreme Audit Institutions

J

t._

-i-

Florence Kalekye Kiriinya
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Experience: Born in 1980. Over 17 years'experience
in the Finance. Senior Treasury at Eastern and

Southern Africa Trade and Development Bank. He is
an Independent Director. He is the Chairperson of the
Strategy & Programs Committee and a member of
Finance & Administration Committee until 15th lune
2023 when the Board was revoked via a gazette
notice7704 of 15th June 2023.

Qualifications: Masters of Business Administration,
BSC in Actuarial Science.

Committee (KSC) of African Organisation of Supreme
Audit Institutions (AFROSAI) (2015-2019). Appointed
as the Chairperson of the Board via Gazette notice
Vol. OC(II No. 206 dated 8th October, 2021 until
15th lune 2023 when the Board was revoked via a
gazette notice 7704 of 15th June 2023.

Qualifications: MSC (Audit Management
Consultancy, University of Central England
Birmingham, UK.

and
in

Robert Oduor Otieno

Experience: Born in 1979. Over seven (7) years'
experience as Procurement Officer at Jomo Kenyatta
University of Agriculture & Technology (JKUAT). An
Independent Director representing Persons Living
with Disabilities. The Chairperson of the Finance &
Administration Committee and a member of the
Conflict Resolution, Dispute & Human Resource
Committee until 15th June 2023 when the Board was
revoked via a gazette notice 7704 of 15th lune 2023.

Qualifications: Bachelors Purchasing and Supplies
Management from JKUAT.

Charles Kimutai Chirchir

Experience: Born in 1992. Over 6 years'experience
in the Public Sector Parastatals. An Independent
Director representing the Youth. The Chairperson to
Conflict Resolution, Dispute & Human Resource
Committee until 15th June 2023 when the Board was
revoked via a gazette notice7704 of 15th June 2023.

Qualifications: Masters in Commerce from
Strathmore University, BCom from Nairobi University.Linda Gacheri Kinyua

t
I I
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Experience: Born in 1965. Over 32 years'
experience in Public Seruice. Represent the Principal
Secretary State Department for Planning. He is

currently the Director Economic Development
Coordination Directorate, State Department for
Planning, the National Treasury and Planning and
responsible for speaiheading intergovernmental
development planning and other development
initiatives in the State Department for Planning. He
was a member of Audit & Risk Committee until his
replacement in April 2023 by Director Eliana Shiroko.

Qualifications: Master of Arts Degree in Economic

Policy Management from Makerere University,

Bachelor of Arts degree (Economics) the University of
Nairobi, Ceftified Project Management Professional

(PMP).

ffi
,N

Benson K. Kimani

Experience: Born in.1982. Over 12 years'experience
in the Public Servitd'in Finance. Representing the
Principal Secretary iri'the National Treasury. He is the
Chairperson of the Audit & Risk Management
Committee and . a member of Finance &
Administration Committee.

Qualifications: Masters of Afts - Economics

&
Y

Robeft Osudi

Experience: Born in 1984. Over 11 years of
experience in the Public Service in Social
Development. Representing the Principal Secretary,
State Department for Social Protection. A member of
the Strategy & Programs Committee and Audit & Risk

Management Committee-

Qualificauon: r,,,la'stpi3 in Rural Sociology and
Community Development (Finalist); Bachelor of Arts
(Economics and Sociology).loyce Mugure

x
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Experience: Born in 1979. Over 10 years'experience
in the Public Service in Gender and Social

Development. Represents the Principal

Secretary-Gender. A member of Conflict Resolution,
Dispute & Human Resource Committee and Strategy
& Programmes Committee.

Qualifications: Masters in Gender and Development

Experience: Born in L970. Over 20 years'

experience in Hotel Industry and Administration and
handling overall business operations. Trained in

Corporate Governance, Projects Management, and
Collaborative Leadership and Monitoring and

Evaluation. Currently working as;
- A Director for Hotel Titanic in Kilifi as well as in

Kilifi Development Initiative (KIDIA).
- A Patron for a Heart for Change Community Based

Organization since 2012.
- A Director at Mischell Plaza; a company in charge

of building and construction.
- A Director and General Manager atTezo Rock and

Smoky Hill Limited.
Appointed as a Board member of the National
Government Affirmative Action Fund (NGAAF) via
Gazette Notice No. 8239 ot 2023, of the Public
Finance Management AC'l (No. 18 of 201).

Qualifications: Bachelor of Science in Hotel and
Hospitality Management. Currently undergoing a

Masters in Human Resource Management at the
Kenya Methodist University.

Experiencer Born in 1964. Over 33 years'

experience in the Public Service. Represent the
Principal Secretary State Department for Planning.

She is currently the Director Economic Development
Coordination Directorate, State Department for
Planning, the National Treasury and Planning. A

member of Audit & Risk Committee. She replaced

Director Benson Kimani.

Qualifications: Master and Bachelor Degree in

Economics in the University of Nairobi.

*t;*,t
,i*

Jackline Nekesa Makokha

Bendera Wilson Charo

Eliana Shiroko

+
*.B tr-
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Experience: Born in 1984. Over 10 years experience
and a seasoned professional with a diverse
background in Medical Laboratory Science, Digital
Marketing & Communication and Development
Studies. Developed analytical skills while working in a
busy Medical Laboratories. Also having worked at the
Independent Electoral and Boundaries Commission
(IEBC) and the Kenya National Bureau of Statistics
(KNBS), provided a unique perspective in his roles.
He gained valuable experience working on President
Ruto's campaign and later within the Deputy
President's Communication team. Beyond his
professional pursuits, Samson maintains a

deep-seated interest in community service and
politics.

Appointed as a Board member of the National
Government Affirmative Action Fund (NGAAF) via
Gazette Notice No. 8239 of 2023, of the Public
Finance Management ACf (No. 18 ol'20127.

Qualifications: A Certified Digital Marketer and
Strategist, On-going Bachelor of Arts in Development
Studies.

Samson Ogola

Roy Sasaka Telewa,
OGWI FCIPS I FIHRM ICHRP(K)

Chief Executive Officer

I

#
IHi

<*6

Experience: Born in 1987. Has over 16 years'
experience in the Public Service. Previously served in
various leadership po'sitions as, CEO National Youth
Council, Procurement Manager (KDIC), Deputy
Procurement Manager CAK, World Bank and Private
Sector.

Qualifications: PhD, MBA, Bachelor of Commerce
and Bachelor of Arts Political Science &
Communications all from University of Nairobi. Sasaka
is a Fellow of the Institute of Human Resource
Management (FIHRM) and a Fellow of the Chartered
Institute of Supplies and Procurement (FCIPS) and a
Ceftified Human Resource Professionals (CHRP: K).
ISO 9001:2015 Standard - lead Auditor's
Certification. :

xll
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4. ManagementTeam

Experiencel Chief Executive Officer

Qualifications: PhD, MBA, Bachelor of
Commerce and Bachelor of Arts Political

Science & Communications all from
University of Nairobi. Sasaka is a Fellow of
the Institute of Human Resource
Management (FIHRM) and a Fellow of the
Chartered Institute of Supplies and
Procurement (FCIPS) and a Certified Human
Resource Professionals (CHRP: K). ISO

9001:2015 Standard - lead Auditor's
Certification.

Responsibility:
Administration

Director Finance &

'ta6
1

,.#
\*ffi t

,.I

Roy Sasaka Telewa,
OGW I FCIPS I FIHRM ICHRP(K)

Chief Executive Officer

Magdaline Kipkenei
Director Finance & Administration

Jackson Kayaga
Programmes Officer

Qualifications: MA
(Community Development
Management), BA Sociology
Science

&
&

Sociology
Project

Political

Responsibility: Head of Programs

Qualifications: MA in Development Studies,
B. Ed (Hons) and CPA finalist.

xlll
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Jesse Njuguna
Ag. Communication Offlcer

Experience: Head of Communication

I 5-'

Serah Muchunga
Princi al Accountant

Qualification: Masters in
Planning and Management,
Environmental Studies.

Environmental
Bachelor of

rf.+
t

--l

&.
T
\

David Kioko
u Chain Mana ement Officer

QI 19,
I

Abdirizak Issa
Principal Human Resource and

Management Development Officer

)

Responsibility: Head of Finance &
Accounts.

Qualifications: MBA in Finance &
Accounting, BBM (Accounting) and CPA (K)

Responsibility: Head Supply Chain
Management

Qualifications: Higher National Diploma in
Purchasing and Supply Chain Management,
Advanced Ceftificate in Supply Chain
Management.

Responsibility: Head of Human Resources

Qualifications: Bachelor of Arts in Social
Science, Higher Diploma in Human Resource
Management.

xlv
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5. Chairpercon's Statement

Introduction

It is my pleasure to present to you 2022/2023 financial statements. It is worth noting that the
Board has laid down structures and systems in place to assist in the day to day running of the
Fund.

Overall performance

The Fund disbursed 1st and 2nd quarter allocation for FY 202212023 to the counties to flnance

communify projects and programs. However, disbursement for 3'd & 4th quarter was received

towards the end of the financial year.

Key Activities and Achievements
1. Disbursement of the lst Quarter, 2nd Quarter & unspent balance allocation amounting to

Kshs. 885,920,037.92.

2. Disbursed emergency funds of Kshs. 44,629,735 to thirty-six (36) counties to assist affected

populations on emergency response interventions

3. The National Government Affirmative Action Fund was categorized in the financial year

2OIOIIOZL. In the financial year 202U2022 the Board developed HR instrument and

submitted to SCAC for apiroval. The instruments were approved in the financial year

202212023.

4. In the financial year 202212023, the Board through the Management consolidated

responses on prior years audit reports and submitted before the Parliamentary Committee.

The Fund supports the following activitiesi

1. Promotion of economic empowerment activities through suppoft to Women, Youth and

PWDs Groups, table banking, and Women owned SACCOS.

2. Provision of Bursary/Scholarships to vulnerable students, trainees in vocational institutions
and children with special needs.

3. Civic education of community leaders and the public on Government programmes and
policies.

4. Support to Gender Based Violence prevention through establishment of rescue and

counselling centres and provision of legal aid and sensitization programmes.

5. Value additional initiatives; support to market shades for women in business, agribusiness,
home industries, enterprise training and development, suppoft to eco-friendly innovations
in energy, housing and appropriate technology etc.

XV



6. ring of talent among the youth in music, art, sports,

7,P n of substance abuse through rehabilitation programmes'

8 rgency Response 2olo of the funds are set aside to suppoft emergencies during floods,

ine, disease outbreak, fire break outs and destruction of basic infrastructure'

Su 3e3

Durl the flnanclal year 2022-2Q23, the Fund disbursed Kshs. 885,920,037.92 to Counties and
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the following;

Supported vulnerable students through bursaries and scholarships'

Sensitized community from 47 counties through Civic Education.

Supported various afflrmative action groups through economic empowerment category

and through value addition income generating initiatives.

Distrlbuted tanks of various slzes to various schools, health facilities and community

affirmative actlon groups and construction of water tower and borehole. This is to

ensure steady supply of water thus reducing water borne diseases.

Supported a huge number of schools going children who benefited from sanitary pads to

guarantee uninterrupted learning.

Supported community groups with car wash machines, mechanical toolboxes and car

diagnostic machines to earn incomes.

Suppofted community groups with motorbikes to run boda-boda business to facilitate

transpoft sector and earn income.

Supported community groups with lQQ-seater tents and chairs as an income generating

activitles. . ;'''

Supported several groups with market and boda-boda'shades for their daily business.

Supported PWDs with wheelchairs, elbow clutches, noimal clutches and walking sticks

to enhance their movement including when seeking for earning opportunities.

Supported SMEs with market umbrellas to enhance their businesses during all-weather

conditions.

Supported a few schools with stem revision and locker desks to enhance learning'

Facllitated community groups with chips frying machlnes and sufurias'

To ensure sustained food security, the Fund supported AAGs with dairy cows as well as

livestock fattening to grouPs.

Supported AAGs with sewing, welding, shoe making machines'

support community groups with water pumps, PVC pipes, irrigation kits and suction

pipes.

ach

t.

ii.

i[.

vi
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xvii Supported talent search with jerseys boots and balls
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xvlll. Supported local gmups wlth saloon equipment.

xax- snpporco fanners with farm inputs to generate incorne and ensure food secufty.
)o(. suppofted local communlty to lncrease forest cover by provlding tree seedlings.
)od. Consmction of social housing unlts and purchase of iron sheets for the vulnerable and

tie old.

Chrllengcs
During the FY 2022-2023, the Fund has experienced a number of challenges including;

1. Inadequate funds to support operations and management both at the National and at the
cotnrty offfces br staff Personnel Emolument, office equipment, office space etc.

2. Inadequate funds to engage requislte staff under the Board as the Fund graduate to full
categorization as a State Corporauon.

3. Ddayetl funds from the Erchequer, especlally 3rd and 4th euarter allocaUon.

a. ilqmllocatlon of recurrent funds fur operations purposes.

5. Manual nature ofoperaUons which hampers data capture on funded projects.

6' I{GAAF Regulations 2016 with some sections not favourable to the targeted population

rEeds.

Fuhlr€ PrGp€cts and Strategy
The Fund's strategy as ouUined in the 2019-2023 strategic plan is to ensure long term
susbinatlility challenge the management team of the Fund. The Board is composed of
Dirccbrs vrlh the right balance of mixed sklllq experience and competencles required for the
adliet/ement of the organization's long-term goals. It also has the goodwill of stakeholders.

I{r Racfiae CHRP (K)
Cfteirpcr$n of tte Board

zrlr.lr-',,:-3
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6. port of the Chief Executive Officer

Ita delight to present to you highllghts of the National Government Affirmative Action Fund's
mance and operations for 202212Q23 financial year.

e

p

I.

v[.

Duri the financial yeat 202212023, the Fund received exchequer release amounting to Kshs.

2,t 000,000 and a supplementary budget amounting to Kshs. 56, 000,000 to cushion Fund's
defi . The Board disbursed Kshs. 885,920,037.92 to Counties for various activities to support
affi ative action groups (Youth, Women and PWDs) for social economic empowerment at
cou level. The disbursement amount included returned unspent cash by the Counties as at
30J e,2022.

Th nds were utilised in achieving the following;
pported 24,552 vulnerable students through bursaries and scholarships to access

ducation opportunities

nsitized community from 4l counties through Civic Education

t, affirmative action groups supported through economic empowerment category and

01 groups through value addition income generating initiatives

Qistributed 1,667 water tanks of various sizes (300 tanks of 1,000 litres, 291 tanks of 2,500

litre capacity; 791 tanks of 5,000 litre capacity; 33 tanks of 6,000 litre capacity; 17 tanks

8,000 litre capacity and 235 tanks of 10,000 litre capacity) to various schools, health

ilities and community amrmative action groups. This is to ensure steady supply of water

hus reducing water borne diseases.

upported school going girls with 152,753 packs of sanitary pads to guarantee

ninterrupted learning.

vl. upported 3 community groups with 3 motorbikes to run boda boda business to facilitate

ransport sector and earn income

upported 219 community groups with 100-seater tents; 81 groups with 50-seater tents;

nd 9,620 plastic chairs for hire as an income generating activity (ies).

uppofted PWDs with 119 wheelchairs, 19 tri-cycles,26 crutches,4 walking sticks,2

[alipers, 1 artificial limb, and 30 white canes to enhance their movement including when

beeking for earning opportunities

I

Amount (Kshs.)Expenditure

822,922,848
1 Counties: To finance economic empowerment

activities for Affirmative Action Groups

109,510,1442 Secretariat / Administrative

44,629,L353 Emergency Interventions

3,641,5005 Monitoring and Evaluation

TOTAL 98O,7O3,627

S

€

s
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ix. Supported 4,790 SMEs with market umbrellas, 150 canvass shades, 300 canvass market

booths to enhance their businesses during all-weather conditions

x. To ensure sustained food security and income generating activities, the Fund supported

AAGs with 1,378 goats and sheep, 9 animal feed mixers. Fufther, the Fund supported sMEs

wlth irrigation equipment including 100 PVC pipes,22 water pumps and 22 suction pipes

and 1 irrigation kit.

xi. Supported farmers to ensure food security with 3,486 bags of fertilizer, 3,953 bags of

maize seeds, 1000 bags of coffee seeds, 4,200 farmers with (maize seeds, fertilizer and

top-dressing fertilizers)

xii. Supported AAGs with 131 sewing machines and 19 welding machines to carry out

businesses to earn them income.

xiii. Supported the elderly households with various items to enhance their living conditions.

This includes supporting such households living under dilapidated conditions with 200 iron

sheets to rebuild their houses, 1,270 blankets to afford them with warmth during cold

conditions.

xiv, Supported the vulnerable community members and elderly towards construction of 12

social housing units in the society to provide shelter.

xv. Construction of 2 market shades and 4 Boda-boda shade to enhance their businesses

during all-weather conditions

xvi. Supported schools with revision books/materials and other equipment; 1,400

stem-revision books and 5iO toct<er desks to guarantee conducive learning environment.

xvii.Supported AAGs in talent search by facilitating sports tournaments and purchasing sports

uniforms and equipment (681 sports uniforms, 601 boots, 240 balls) to ensure the youth

are engaged.

xviii. Supported AAGs with 110 chips-frying machines, 50 sufurias to boost their hotel related

businesses.

xix. Enhanced environmental conservation by supporting AAGs with 32,061 fruit tree seedlings

and 18,860 tree seedlings to mitigate on climate change.

xx. To ensure sustainability of small-scale business, SMEs were supported with 17 sets of
saloon equipment.

rc(i. Purchaseandmodificationot2(40feet)containerstothegroupstohelpsmall businesses.

xxii.Support AAGS groups in,'shm areas with 1,850 jiko okoa, to reduce over-dependence on

fire/vood and kerosene while conserving the envlronment.

rxiii. Support SMEs with 138 car wash machines, 25 mechanical tool boxes, 25 car diagnostic

machines and B shoe making machines to boost their businesses.
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nget
F'Y 2022-2023, the Fund has experienced a number of challenges;

In.dcquat€ funds

Inadequate funds for administrative functions these including; salaries, inadequate

staff, motor vehicle maintenance and fuel and other office operations. None allocation

of recurrent funds for operations purposes.

ll. Inad€quate staffing

The Fund has inadequate staff both at the Secretariat and in the counties due to
lnadeq uate funding. The Board has tried to address thq ahallenges through requesting

for more funding from The tlonal Treasury and seeking for support from development
partners and other stakeho ers.

iii. InadGquate offlce spa and equipment

The National Se currently housed in Absa Plaza 16h floor while most County

oFflcers are cur
fully equlpped

mmodated at the County Commissioners'offices which are not
are hosted ln the Women Representatives'offices.
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7. Statom.nt of Nationat Government Affirmative Actaon Fund Performance

agalnst Predeterm ined objectives for financial year 202212023

SectlonSlsubsection2(f,)ofthePublicFinanceManagement'Act,2012.requiresthe
ii.*nting omcer to include in the financial statement, a statement of the national government

entity's performance against predetermined objectives'

The National Government Affirmative Action Fund has 5 Strategic Pillars and Objectives within

lGitriiegfi Plan for the FY 2018/2Otg'202212023. These strategic pillars are as follows:

Plllar 1: Economlc Empowerment
Pillar 2: Socio-Cultural DeVelbpment
Plllar 3; Instltutional & Capaclty Development
Pillar 4: Resource MobilizatiQn
Pillar 5: Tracking & Repofting on Implementation of NGAAF programmes

NGAAF develops lts annual work plans based on the above 5 pillars. Assessment of the Board's

performance against its annual work plan is doneon a quarterly basis. The Organization did not

achteve its periormance targets set for theFY 2Q2212023 period for its five strategic pillars due

to delayed exchequer recei-pt. The achievements are as indicated in the diagram below:

Achievements

Disbursed: Ksh: 94,224,868.28
PC Target: Ksh: 387,660,000.00
Groups Funded: 649
PC Targeted groups: 2,500

Ensure that GBV centres, Rescue and

Rehabilitation centers, IT centres and

all other construction by NGAAF are

friendly to PWDs. This includes
construction of ramP.

Partnered with various government &
non- overnmental stake holders.

Promote Value
Addition
Inltiatives

Civic'Education &
Community
Sensitization

PC targeted: 553 grouPs

Number of groups suPported: 301
F: 8,400
M: 3,589
PWD:383

No. of citizen reached during civic
education

Achieved: 73,329
PC Target: 161,100

Key
Pedormance
Indlcators

ObJectlveStrateglc
Pl!!ar

Amount
disbursed.

Number of
rou funded

Support table
banking activities
fdr AAGs

Strengthen
capacity of AAGs

and PWDs for
ease of access to
funds and other
services

Number of
Groups
supported for
value addition
su rted

To Increase
income for
Affirmative
Action Groups

Number of
people reached
during civic
education
programmes

To improve
uptake of
Government
programmes
and pollcies

Pillar 1:
Economic
Empower
ment
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Provide advocacy
on social rights &
participation of
AAGs

ofNumber
persons
sensitized

Reached out through civic education
forums

Number of
Elderly reached
out

Blankets bought for elderly persons in
Migori County
Supported elderly persons in
construction of 12 housing units (2
rooms) to reconsffuct their
dilapidated houses in Kitui Counw

To Promote
Social Rights
for
Affirmative
Action Groups Support Elderly

Persons as per the
Fund Access
Guidelines

Commenced construction of Rescue
centres at Taita Taveta, Mombasa
and Nairobi counties

Increase number
of GBV &
Recovery centres
& make them
operational

Commence
access to
construction of
Gender rescue
centre in Taita
Taveta, GBV
centre in
N4ombasa and
Nairobi
Counties

Working with various stakeholders'
including Chiefs and Assistant Chiefs
to sensitize the community about the
centres for ease of accessibility by the
survivors.

To enhance
access to
services for
survivors of
GBV, FGM,
child or
forced
marriages

Facilitate
survivors of GBV
to access services

Nandi Drugs and Substance Abuse
and Rehabilitation centre fully
constructed. Awaiting equipping and
gperationalization

Working with stakeholders to
operationalize the centre

Establish
rehabilitation &
Counselling
centres and make
them operational

Construction &
operationalizati
on of Alcohol &
Drug abuse
rehabilitation
centre in Nandi
County

Operationalize
of the
rehabilitation&
counselling
centre in
Turkana

To enhance
access to
services for
the control of
drugs &
substance
abuse

Kilifi county purchased 100 balls for
the teams (Sofoot balls and 25 balls
each for volleyball and netballs)
Nyeri county purchased 100 balls; 50
ejlch for foot balls and volleyballs

Igiolo county purchased 2 balls for
football teams, 11 pairs of sports
boots and 11 pairs of sports uniforms
Tana River county purchased 20 pairs

of sports socks; B0 pairs of sports
uniforms and 1 trophy

Provision of
sporting
equipment

m

To identif,/
and develop
talents
among
affirmative
action groups
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Wajir county purchased 38 balls for
football, 590 pairs of spots boots,
590 pairs of sports uniforms and 152

nets for use teams
The following counties held sports
tournaments; Embu, Makueni,
Mandera, Nyandarua, Nyeri, Tana
River and West Pokot. This was
meant to give opportunities to the
AAGs to exploit their talents
develo ment

Standard Operating Procedures
developed

Finalized the development of Human
Resource Management Policies for
the Fund which were approved by
SCAC

Requested for the posting of more
staff at NGAAF to act as County
Coordinators
Supported officers to participate
during professional bodies workshop

Maintained partnership with Equity
8ank, Cooperative Bank and Groots
(Kenya)

Supporting
Tournaments

To increase
access to
education
opportunities
for
affirmative
action qroups

Provision of
bursaries and
scholarships

52,500 needy
students
targeted

24,552 students benefited
(Female= 13,510; Male=9,821 and
PWD=1,221)

Pillar 3:
Institution
al &
Capacity
Developm
ent

To strengthen
Internal
Corporate
governance
systems

Ensure
compliance with
laws, regulations,
national values
and principles of
qood qovernance

Induction
report

An onllne induction conducted on 16th

January 2023 on all County
Coordinators (Gender Offi cers)

Develop
corporate
communication
strategy

a Responding to
queries raised
via the email
contacts
provided for at
the NGAAF
website

Use of twitter account
Use of facebook account
Use of WhatsApp

Develop &
implement
(Standard
operating
Procedures.
SOPS)

Strengthen
Human
Capital

Formulate Human
Resource Policies

Ensure Optimal
Human Resource

Enhance Staff
Training &
Development

Pillar 4:
Resource
Mobilizatio
n

To
supplement
the share of
Revenue

Establish
partnerships,
Engagements &
Linkaqes with

Partnership
agreement
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rivate sector

development
partners and the

Establish, a
monitoring
evaluation &
Reporting system

M&E Report Elaborate M & E undertaken in the
following counties among others:
Mombasa, Kisii, Kisumu, Nakuru,
Nandi, and Nairobi. Shortage of staff
and exigencies of duUes hindered
more counties bein included.

m

g&
ng

ent

Strengthen
tracking of
Implementati
on of policies,
plans &
Budgets.

Provide timely and
reliable
information for
evidence-based
decision makin

Reports escalated to the Board in a
timely manner

N

Pillar

ation

Trac

pr0g
es

Re
on
Im
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8. Corporate Governance Statement

The Board of National Government Affirmative Action Fund is committed to ensuring that the

Fund operates with professionalism and integrity and maintains high standards of Corporate

Governance in carrying out its mandate. The Board embarks on ensuring that the Fund

complies with the guidelines on Corporate Governance practices as it is a requirement for public

officers.

During this period, the Fund continued to ensure adherence to the following principles:

i) l rmely preparation of accurate financial statements and project reports both

performance and financial rePorts

ii) Effective processes and systems of risk management and internal controls are in place

iii) Maintains an effective and efficient system of internal controls

iv) Procurement process is cost effective and delivers the value for money

v) Ensures that books of accounts are prepared on timely basis

vi) Delegates to management the responsibility to implement risk management plan

vii) Delegates to management the responsibility of designing, implementing and monitoring

effectiveness of internal control systems
viii) Ensures that the chairperson of audit committee is an independent Board member

ix) Ensures that at least one member of the audit committee has relevant qualifications and

expertise in audit, firiin'cial management or accounting.

x) Ensures that the intemal audit function repofts to the Audit committee on regular basis

Board of Management

The Board is responsible for overall management and long-term strategy of the Fund, ensures
compliance with statutory requirements and fulfilling the Funds' responsibilities to
stakeholders. The role of the Board is to approve disbursement of funds to the counties,
receive, review and approve projects proposals for funding from counties, oversee the
management of the Fund, receive, review and approve reports of the Fund.

The Board of Management as stipulated in the NGAAF Regulations, 2016 consists of four (4)
independent members and four (4) alternate members representing Principal Secretary
responsible for matters relating to Gender, Social Security Services, the National Treasury and
Planning. They are appointed as per guidelines provided in the Legal notice No. 52 of 20L6.

The roles of the Chairperson,and the Chief Executive Officer are clearly separated as set out in
Mwongozo. The ChairpersUn provide overall leadership to the Board, leads in setting the
agenda for Board meetings, guide Board's decision-making process and encourage Board

members to pafticipate fully in Boards deliberations. Monitor the performance of the CEO and
maintain close, but independent working relationship with the CEO while ensuring appropriate
balance of power between the CEO and the Board. The Chairperson is the spokesperson for the
Board and is the principal contact for the CEO.
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ver, the Board remains collectively responsible for the decisions and actions taken by any

co

ex
'1,

ittee. A committee only performs the task delegated to it by the Board and should not

the authority or powers of the Board.

The y-to-day management of the business and implementation of policy decisions approved
Board is the responsibility of the Chief Executive Officer who is also the secretary to theby

Boa and is in charge of the Secretariat.

The
time for appropriate review for discussions in meetings, thereby discharging their

rd members are provided with complete and timely information to allow them ample

res sibilities effectively and efficiently. The Board members are encouraged to develop
kno dge of the operations of the Fund by taking part in varioLis activities organized including
field isits, monitoring and evaluation and regular trainings.

Ino r to discharge its mandate and responsibilities effectively, the Board has established and

dele ated ceftain tasks to its committees with specific terms of reference. The Board has

a ted the committees of the Board with requisite skills and competencies to discharge
all ed responsibilities. There are four standing committees of the Board each with clear
ter ! of reference. These are:

1. Audit and Risk Committee

2. Finance and Administration Committee

3. Strategy and Programmes Committee

4. Conflict Resolution, Dispute & Human Resource Committee

The $oard and its sub-committee meetings are held as per Board calendar and as dictated by

I emerging urgent agenda. During the year the Board held three (3) meetings, Boardoth
Eva tion one (1), three (3) special meeting, Finance and Administration committee three (3)

me

Ma

ng, Strategy and Programs Committee held three (3) meetings, Audit and Risk

ement committee one (1) meeting while Conflict Resolution, Dispute & Human Resource

co ittee held two (2) meeting. Further, the Board held two (2) consultative meeting with the

Wo n Representative and fwo (2) adhoc meetings for Chairpersons of the committees to

en fe disbursement of funds is done immediately after the vetting. The Board adhoc were

fsitated by approval of proposals from the programmes committee to allow disbursements

,f'Ot. ett these meetings enabled smooth operations of the management and discharge of
the nds Mandate.

n

of

H
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Board expenses .: :

The boardexpenses are as disclosed in the Financial Statements. The allowances paid are

sitting allowances, accommodation/daily subsistence and transpoft allowances for attending
Board meeting and on official.duties, perdiem on domestic/local travel and lunch allowance

where it is not provided while on official duties in line with Government Circulars and net of
tax where applicable. The terms of employment of the Chief Executive Officer are clearly

defined in the employment contract.

Accountability, audit and stakeholder relations

The Board recognizes its responsibility to present a balanced and understandable assessment

of the Fund's flnancial position and prospects. The Funds financial statements are prepared in

accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) and the

requirements of the Public Finance Management Act-2012 and audited in accordance with

International Auditing Standards (IAS). The Board members recognize and have confirmed

their responsibility over the Filanclal Statements and have provided information in this report

that they consider useful to stakeholders.

Communication with Stakeholders

The Fund disbursed allocation for 2 quarters in the financial year 202212023 to all counties. It
has been maintaining a website, www.ngaaf,go.ke-which gives general information about

the Fund and various activities undertaken. It has been updated accordingly to provide

information to the public. The Fund has a twifter handle @NGAAF-KE and a Facebook

account ngaafkenya whose intention is to capture the participation of the youth thorough the

social media platforms.

The Fund actively participates in joint establishment with other Funds and departments within

the Ministry and Huduma Centre, to further its mandate to different communities in a more

defined and organized platform. In addition, the Fund actively participates in County activities

like value addition initiatives, civic education, Bursaries and scholarships. Further, requests for

information through othei qUJrters are considered and acted upon as they are received and

appropriate disclosure provided.

Board Charter

Good corporate governance is regarded as critical to the success of the business of the Board.

The Board is unreservedly committed to applying the fundamental principles of good

governance including but not limited to; Integrity, Equity and Fairness, Innovativeness, Gender
Equality, Transparency and Accountability, Integrity, Dignity and Self-reliance.

This charter is anchored on Mwongozo; the code of governance for state corporations issued by

the State Corporations Advisory Committee.

The main objective of the charter is;

i. To define the governance parameters within which the Board shall operate;

ii. To set out specific responsibilities to be discharged by the Board members collectively;
xxvll
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t To ascertain roles and responsibilities incumbent upon Board members as individuals;

iTo facilitate the full and free exercise of Board members' abilities and enhance

effectiveness in their contributions that is consistent with standards of independent

] iudgement, ethics and integrity expected of them.

l.

iv.

Co

Boa

ma

tm

of $ meeting at which the disclosure is made.

B Jd, Indroion and skills Development

Th
en

po

le
ard members undertook comprehensive skill development training from ICPAK to
effective and elficient contribution in implementation of the Funds activities.

rd members are expected to receive continuous skills development to enhance andAil
reF h their knowledge and skills, which will add to their credibility and effectiveness in the
di liarge of their responsibilities. The Board shall continue to provide necessary resources for

ldmenting training programmes in future.

B rd Members' Remuneration

members were paid sitting allowances, accommodation/daily subsistence and transport
all ances for attending Board meeting and on olficial duties, per diem on domestic/local

I and lunch allowance where lunch in kind was not provided while on official duties in line

WI I Government Circulars while the Chairperson was paid monthly honoraria in line with
G

B

rnment Circulars.

rd Performance

Board is expected to perform an annual evaluation to appraise its performance. This
ation is carried out in accordance with Board evaluation tools through SCAC. This provides

ict of interest

members are required to maintain integrity and declare any conflict of interest on any
r relating to the Fund. A disclosure of an interest made shall be recorded in the minutes

EV

an
Pe

pportunity to identify strengths collective skills gaps and individual areas of improvement.
rmance of each committee is also reviewed against agreed terms of reference. The Board

al evaluates the performance of the Chairperson and the CEO.

B rd and Management Succession

J

term of Board was renewed in September, 2021 and this guaranteed continuity of
rations of the Fund. However, the Board was disbanded via a gazette notice no. 7704 of
lune 2023. Fufther, the Fund advertised and recruited for the position of the CEO in the

ncial year 2022-2023.

T
o
1

R
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9. Management Discussion and Analysis

The Mandate of the Fund;

Enhancement of access to financial facilities for affirmative action groups and the

amount allocated to this objective shall not exceed twenty (20olo) of the total Fund

receipts;

Suppoft of value addition initiatives by the affirmative action groups;[.

iii. Socio-cultural development and nurturing of talent for the affirmative action groups

including promotion olthe arts, music and sports;

iv. Enhanced access to services for suryivors of gender-based violence, female genital

mutilation, child marriages or forced marriages through the establishment of rescue

centers and legal aid centers and other similar facilities;

v. Support of affirmative action groups through bursaries and scholarships to access

education opportunities. The amount allocated to this objective shall not exceed tvventy

(20olo) of the annual total allocations of the Fund;

vi. Establishment of drug and substance abuse rehabilitation and counseling centers in

conjunction with the relevant Government agencies;

vfl. Conducting civic education and community sensitization on National Government
Affirmative Action programmes and policies such as the 30o/o procurement reservation

for women, youth and' persons with disabilities, existence of other social economic

empowerment opportunities such as Uwezo Fund and Youth Enterprise Development

Fund and Women Enterprise Development Fund. The amount allocated to this objective
shall not exceed ten (100/o) of the annual allocation of the Fund.

The table below indicates distribution of allocation in each funding category

S/No. Categoly o/o Amount (lchs.)

1 County/Constituency 50 920,692,500.00

2 Bursary 20 368,277,000.00

2 Women Economic Empowerment 20

4 Civic EducatiQn 10 184,138,500.00

368,277,000.00
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The chart below indicates percentage funding distribution for various categories

% age d istribution disbursement
€0
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iii.

iv.

vi.

stitutional Strengthening the followang was achieved;

During the year the Internal Auditors from Gender carried out audit in 5 Counties.

Finalization of evaluation exercise for the E-Board & Integrated Financial and

Programme Management Information System.

Enhancement of corporate image by adoption of corporate colours and rebranding

Enhancement of internal controls and systems in procurement and finance departments

Enhancement of performance management

Improved working conditions

Ma r Risks Facing the Fund

Thi ntails undeftaking mitigation measures through compliance to mitigate threats and

tn ing people to follow the set procedures and use of relevant tools in order to ensure

ity with risk management policies. To ensure the organization is cushioned against

n the following risK and strategies have been identified: . .

1 gative cultural and social beliefs that hinder some communities from accessing the funds,

is is mostly experienced in Muslim dominated countips. The Fund has enhanced civic

ucation.

2 allenges in operationalizing some of the Section(s) in NGAAF Regulations, 2016 which

ted the Fund. There is need to involve stakeholders in reviewing some of the articles in

Regulations.

gh rate of stalf turnover. There is need for the Board to secure its already existing

rkforce by ensuring better terms of employment.
3
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4. Challenges in securing Personnel Emolument. NGAAF has not been able to secure

expenditure for PE for County Coordinators and staff'

5. The Fund operational costs are capped at 5olo which is insufficient to run the entity

efftctively. Therefore, there is need to review Regulations 15 (5)'
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10. Environmental and Sustainability Reporting

The tional Government Affirmative Action Fund exists to transform lives. This is our purpose;
the ving force behind evefihing we do. It's what guides us to deliver our strategy, which is

e

foun
and

d on 5 pillars: putting the customer/citizen first, delivering relevant goods and services,
rnproving operational excellence. Below is a brief highlight of our achievements in each

Sustainability strategy and profi le

ernment of Kenya is committed to the attainment of the United Nations Sustainable
lopments Goals (SDGs) as agreed upon by the international community in September,

DGs are universal and they address the economic, social and environmental dimensions
inable development in a comprehensive and integrated manner. The SDGs incorporate

mental policy as outlined in the strategic plan is captured under the social pillar which
qs on Environmental conservation and management activities. It also lays emphasis on

ing environmental challenges such a climate change and e-waste. This comes along with
preference for green products and services. This in terms leads to the importance of
sing public private partnership as a strategic response:

sees this as potential business opportunity for affirmative groups. In this context, the
re sensitized on the opportunities e.g carbon credit trading through afforestation
s, and also provides such groups with appropriate capacity and facilities.

pilla

(.)

The
Dev

ex ience gained from the Millennium Development Goals (MDGs) and include additional
dim ions on sustainability. The mandate of NGAAF has a direct corresponding relationship
with sustainable development goals. In its strategy implementation, NGAAF has put in place
prog ammes and activities which make the Fund a significant player in implementing the 8
SDG . However, since the 17 SDGS are inter-linked, the Fund's key to achieving 8 implies that
all s are achieved.

( ii) Envaronmental performance

201
ofs

Envi
focu
eme
it th
rnc

NG
AAG
activ

F

la

i"

NG is leveraged on Strategic partnership to ensure it is continuously meeting its mandate.
So of NGAAF strategic partners includes, Cooperative Bank, Equity Bank and Groots among
othe
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Envtronmental conservation through plantang of trees at Ol'Kalou Pnmary School in Nyandarua County. Students and pLrprls

wcre qiven an opportunity to carry out the exercise and nurture the trees to maturity
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Rebecca Ekitela and Rose Esinyen from Lobokat ward in Turkana South, Turkana County benefittrng from electric scwrng
machine to support their tailoring busrness
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Sectlon of Tarta Tavcta Bura Child Rescue Centre (Admrnrstratron block) at Nlwatate Sub-County, Tarta Taveta County

Front section of the Safe House for NGAAF in Nairobi County. The slructure awarts roofing (some roofing materials on site),

frnrshes, mechanical and electflcal and crvrl works
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Girls'dormitory at Kisima Mixed Girls School in Samburu County. Taken durinq visit by the Samburu County Internal auditors,

NGAAF staff and the contractor

Employee Welfare

The Public Service Commission policies of hiring staff are taken into account based on the core
values of tenets of equity, gender equality, dignity, integrity, innovativeness and self-reliance.
NGAAF is guided by its strategic plan where it has captured issues of staff welfare. In particular,

the following have been encapsulated in staff welfare. Defined career progression, healthy,
safe and secure working environment, training and development opportunities for staff,
welfare and equity as well as fair remuneration. NGAAF has endeavoured to ensure that all

staff operate from Governrherit premiseS whose safety meet the thresholds required by the
Occupational Safety & Heafth Act (OSHA of 2007).

Market place practices

The Organization channels National Government Support to affirmative action groups for free.

The beneficiary groups are not expected to pay any fee or inducements in order to receive such

support. No staff is expected to receive rewards from the beneficiary groups for executing
his/her mandate. The support is based on the constituencies where each constituency receives

a similar allocation across the country without discrimination. The organization cooperates with
other agencies working towards empowerment of affirmative action groups. These include:
Women Enterprise Fund, Youth Enterprise Development Fund, Hustler Fund and Uwezo Fund.

The Fund envisages and advocates for synergies across other existing funds in advancing the
affirmative action and as well fpr greater reach and impact. To this end, the Fund champions
for a harmonious working relationship to enhance the complimentary role of this funds since

NGAAF support is a grant unlike the other funds where funds ought to be repaid.

The organization has a Supply Chain Management department that handles procurement

function and activities. The Fund undertakes procurement function in compliance and in
accordance to guidelines and policies on implementation of the Public Procurement and Asset

Disposal Act (2015), Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Regulations, 2020 and other
relevant Statutes. It undertakes inventory management, oversees the implementation of
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e-procurement and participates in negotiations on framework agreements and consortium
buyirlg. It also follows government policy on reserving 30o/o of all its procurement for entities
owndd by women, PWDs and youth. In addition, the organization has set aside 40 % of its
procurcment budget to promote local content.

Conslruction to completion of market sheds in some counties has facilitated serene and

conducive working environment for businesses to thrive. The AAGs are able to work for long

hours and during all-weather conditions without any interruption when either too sunny or
rainy

i!,,ral."t
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ConstruFed market sheds in Kisai County at Nyacheki and Tabaka, The markets have 100 stalls each where business persons

will be leeping their wares

Comrtunity Engagement
The origanlzation engages with the community through its nature of mandate. The Affirmative
Action Fund was established to provide financial support to.affirmative action groups for
socio-Cconomic development through legal notice No. 52 of the Public Finance Management
Act (Nbf 18 of 20L2) led to the birth of NGAAF Regulations, ' ''

It provides bursaries/scholarships to needy students across all the counties in each quarterly

disbur$ement. It also provides communities with oppoftunities for nufturing youth talents and

sports,, trhe organization has also undertaken a lot of initiatives providing sanitary pads to
schoollgoing girls, provision of market umbrellas and conducting civic education programmes

to infolrn the public of the Fund's mandate. Further, it has engaged in planting of trees in
paft nef$hip with other stakeholders.
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Talent development through football tournament in Makueni County. Hon. County Member of Parliament (Hon

Rose Museo) gracing the occasion at Kikumini grounds, Nguu Masumba Ward
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Display of trophies to be awarded to the winning team from football tournament in Makueni County
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Civic education forum where community members are attentrvely Istening on how to access NGAAF funds in Lamu County
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Issuance of cheques to qroups in Lamu County Issuance of bursary and scholarship cheques in Nairobi County

\\\\ lll



National Government Affirmative Action Fund
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11. Report of the Darectors

The Directors submitted their report together with audited financial statements for the year

ended June, 2023 which show the state of the National Government Affirmative Action Fund

Affairs.

i) Principal activities

The principal activity of the National Government Affirmative Action Fund is to enhance access

to financial facilities for Affirmative Action Groups (AAG's) through support to:

a) Women Economic Empowerment;

b) Value Addition Initiatives by AAGs;

c) Socio-cultural development and nurturing of talent for AAGs including promotion of arts

music and sports;

d) Survivors of gender-based..violence, female genital mutilation, child marriages or forces

marriages through establishment of rescue centres, legal aid centers and other similar

facilities;

e) Provision of bursaries and scholarships to access training and educational opportunities;

f) Rehabilitation and rescue, counseling centres in conjunction with the relevant government

agencies to address drug and substance abuse and

g) Civic education and community sensitized on National Government Affirmative Action

Programmes and policies.

ii) Results

The results of the entity for the year ended June 30,2023 are set out on page 1

iia) Directors

The members of the Board of Directors who serued during the year are shown on pages viii to

x .
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National Government Affirmative Action Fund
Annurl Report and Financial Ststements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

L2, Statement of Dirsdgts' Responslbilities

Section 81(1) of the Public;Fih'ance Management Act, 2012 requires that at the end of the

flnancial year, the Accounting;Offlcer foi a national government entity shall prepare financial

statements in respect of the Natlonal Government Afflrmative Action Fund, which give a true

and fair view of the state of affairs of the entity at the end of financial year and the operating

results of the entity for the year. The Directors are also required to ensure that National

Government Affirmative Action Fund keeps proper accounting records which disclose with

reasonable accuracy the financial position of the entity. The Directors are also responsible for

safeguarding the assets of the National Government Affirmative Action Fund.

Section 81 (3) requires the financial statements so prepared to be in a form that complies with

relevant accounting standards as prescribed the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board of
Kenya from time to time.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the National Government

Afflrmative Action Fund (NGAAF) financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the

state of affairs of NGAAF for the year ended on )une,2023'

This responsibility includes:

Maintaining adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these

continue to be effective throughout the reporting period;

Maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any

time the financial position of the entity;
.

iii. Designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation

and fair presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they are free from

material mis-statemeqq whether due to error or fraud

iv. Safeguarding the assets of the National Government Affirmative Action Fund

v, Selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and

vi. Making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Directors accept responsibility for the NGAAF's Financial Statements, which have been

prepared on the Accrual Basis Method of Financial Reporting, using appropriate accounting

policies in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) and

relevant legal framework of the Government of Kenya. The Directors are of the opinion that

the NGAAF's Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the state of NGAAF's Financial

Position as at that date. The Directors further confirms the completeness of the accounting

records maintalned for the NdAAF, which have been relied upon in the preparation of the

NGMF Financial Statements 
'ds 

well as the adequacy of the systems of internal financial

control.
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l0drhg has come to the attention of the Directors b indicate that the ltational Govemment

Afifina0\re Acdon Fund will not remain a going cmcem for at least the ne* twelve months

fiorn tie date of this statement.

of the Annual Financial Statements

f&thnd Govemment Afflrmdve Adon Fund Flnancial were approved by the
Board on .rt \ rr. \ 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

o}c

I lrl ki, CHR.P(K) Roy Sasaka IFCXPSIFIHRITIICHRP (K)
the Board Chief Executi
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EPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON THE NATIONAL GOVERNMENT
FFIRMATIVE ACTION FUND NGAAF FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

EAMBLE

raw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts

Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
arc faily presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
vant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
ernance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
r under review.

three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
ponsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of lhe Constitution, the
blic Finance Management Acl, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 201 5. The three parts of
report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General

PORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

alified Opinion

hve audited the accompanying financial statemenls of National Government Afflrmative
ion Fund set out on pages 1 to 26, which comprise of the statement of financial position

R
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,
as at 30 June, 2023, and the statement offinancial performance, statement of changes
in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual
arnounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the PublicAuditAct,2015. I have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the National Government Affirmative Action Fund as at
30 June, 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended,
in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and
comply with the Public Finance Management Act,2012.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Misstatement of Property, Plant and Equipment

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.188,863,723 and as disclosed in Note 19 to the financial statements. However,
review of the fixed asset register and underlying records revealed that the property, plant
and equipment balance comprised of motor vehicles, furniture and fittings, computers and
other assets at cost values without commensurate depreciation charge for use of the
assets. This was contrary to Paragraph 49 of the lnternational Public Sector Accounting
Standard (IPSAS) 17 on property, plant and equipment which provides for revaluation of
property, plant and equipment every three to five years. Further, the assets have not been
revalued or depreciation charged to reflect the carrying amount of the property, plant and
equipment.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of property, plant and equipment
balance of Kshs.188,863,723 could not be confirmed.

2. lnaccuracies in Cash and Cash Equivalents Balance

The statement of financial position reflects cash and cash equivalents balance of
Kshs.1,804,347,961 which includes balances in County Offices of Kshs.68,150,869 as
disclosed in Note 17 to the financial statements. However, review of the bank
reconciliation statements revealed that, included in the reconciling items described as
unpresented cheques as at 30 June, 2023 were stale cheques amounting to
Kshs.1,112,267 issued by NGAAF Offices in Kisii County. Further, the bank reconciliation
statement for NGAAF Machakos County had long outstanding payments in the cashbook,
not in the bank statement (unpresented cheques) totalling Kshs.7,669,664, out of which,
Kshs.3,455,243 relates to stale cheques issued in October, 2020.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the cash and cash equivalents
balance of Kshs.1,804,347,961 could not be confirmed.

Rcport of the Auditor-Generel on The Nationql Government Afirmolive Acrion Fund (NGAAF) Ior the year ended
l0 June, 202 3
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lnaccuracies in Payables Balance

[e statement of financial position reflects payables balance of Kshs.823,700 as

isclosed in Note 16 of the financial statements. However, the balance excludes
hyables'balance of Kshs.12,4'12,467 owed to suppliers in Kisii County indicated under

supplementary disclosure Note 16 to the financial statements. Further, the
nagement did not provide a satisfactory explanation for the failure to settle the bills

lrring the year they occurred

the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the payables balance of
$frs.AZg,zOO could not be confirmed

e audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
titutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the National Government Affirmative Action

und Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other
hical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
quirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
dt the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
y qualified opinion.

lhphasis of Matter

qdgetary Control and Performance

b c
statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects the final receipt

get and actual on a comparable basis of Kshs.2,186,000,000 and
s.2,186,764,178 respectively resulting in an overfunding of Kshs.764,178. Similarly,
Fund spent an amount of Kshs.980,703,627 against an approved budget of

s.2,240,822,627 resulting in an under-expenditure of Kshs.1,260,119,000 or 56 % of
budget.

h
e
h

T p overfunding and the under-expenditure affected the planned activities of the Fund
a d may have impacted negatively on service delivery to the public

M iopinion is not modified in respect of this matter

I Audit Mafters

y audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
sl ficance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
re rt in the year under review

o

U

er Matter

Jesolved Prior Year Matters

e audit report of the previous year, several paragraphs were raised. Although, the
agement has indicated that some of the issues have been resolved under progress

ofl of the Auditot -Gencral on The Nqtional Governnent AlJirmdtive Actkn Fund (NGAAF) for the )'ear endcd
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on follow up of auditor's recommendation section of the financial statements, the matters
remained unresolved as at 30 June,2023.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) ot the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing
else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1.0 lrregular Purchase of Umbrellas

The statement of financial performance reflects transfers to other Government units -
Counties expenditure of Kshs.822,922,848, as disclosed in Note 8 to the financial
statements. The funds were disbursed to Counties on quarterly basis for various projects
based on Board approved projects and NGAAF Fund Access Guidelines,2021. Rgview
of Approved Second Quarter of 2022-2023 Ref: MPSGAA/SDGAA/NGAAF/7 of
30 March, 2023 for Countywide projects, No. 3 indicated that the Board approved for
Nakuru County to buy nine hundred and twenty (920) umbrellas at a total cost of
Kshs.3,628,480. However, according to the NGAAF Fund Access Guidelines, 2O2'l, each
County is allowed to buy a maximum of two hundred (200) umbrellas only. No explanation
was provided for purchase of the excess 720 umbrellas worth Kshs.2,839,680. Further,
Kilifi and Mombasa Counties exceeded the limit of 200 umbrellas set out in the Guidelines
by one hundred twenty (120) and three hundred and fifty (350) resulting in an irregular
over-expenditure cost of Kshs. 1,000,000 and Kshs. 1,7 1 8,250 respectively.

ln the circumstances, the propriety of the expenditure totalling Kshs.5,557,930 could not
be confirmed and the Managementwas in breach of the NGAAF Fund Access Guidelines
on the funds.

2.0 Failure to lmplement E-Procurement Processes

During the year under review, the Fund carried out procurement of goods and services
outside the e-Procurement Module. This was contrary to Regulation 49(2) ot the Public
Procurement and Asset Disposal Regulations, 2020 which states that the conduct of e-
procurement procedures for the supply of goods, works and services shall be carried out
by a procuring entity using an e-procurement system which is integrated to the State
portal. Further, Executive Order No. 2 of 2018 iv (b) which directed all accounting officers
to ensure that beginning 1 January, 2019, all Public Procuring Entities shall undertake all
their procurements through the e-Procurement Module on lFMlS. The NGAAF
Management also did not publicize all ongoing contracts entered into contrary to
Executive Order No. 2 ot 20'18 (f) which required all public procuring entities to publish all

Report of the Auditor-General on The Nqtional Governmenl A.ffrrmqlive Action Fund (NGAAF) for the year ended
30 June, 2023
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oing contracts entered into before finalization of expected works, suppliers or services
nding completion and final payments.

the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law and government policy on
rocurement

Non-Adherence to NGAAF Policies and Fund Access Guidelines

view of Fund records provided revealed that the Fund did not update the registered list
suppliers during the year under review. This was contrary to Paragraph 57 of the

F Fund Access Guidelines, 2021, which states that the procuring entity shall
intain and update the list of registered suppliers in categories of goods, works and

rvices according to its procurement needs. Further, the NGAAF County Offices did not
vide reports on pending payments to NGAAF headquarters for the financial year

ding 30 June, 2023. ln addition, the Management did not operationalize completed
cue and Counselling Centers in various Counties

the circumstances, the Fund Management was in breach of the law

Non-Compliance with Gender Rule in Employment

ring the year under review, the total number of employees of the Fund was eighty (80),
of whom sixty-four (64) or 80% of the total number were of male gender. This was
rary to the Public Service Commission Human Resource Policies and Procedures
ual, 2016 which provides that the Government will endeavor to have a balanced civil
ice by ensuring that not more than twothirds (2/3) of the positions in the
blishment are filed by either gender.

n

he circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

lrregularities in Recruitment of NGAAF County Coordinators

ring the year under review, the Fund recruited forty-five (45) County Coordinators to
fi cant positions on a three-year contract effective 1 July, 2023. However, the following

malies were noted:

Lack ofan updated Human Resource Plan and Human Resource Management
Advisory Committee (HRMAC)

National Government Affirmative Action Fund had not updated Human Resource
n contrary to Paragraph 2.15.1 of the NGAAF Human Resource Policy and Procedure
nual which states that, the CEO shall ensure the development of a Human Resource
n based on comprehensive job analysis, which shall be reviewed every yearto address
erging issues and needs. Further, the CEO did not constitute a Human Resource
nagement Advisory Committee (HRMAC) for the Fund. This was contrary to

graph 2.14.1 of the NGAAF Human Resource Policy and Procedure manual which
tes that, the CEO shall constitute a Human Resource Management Advisorys

3

mittee (HRMAC). The Committee's advisory services include management of the
ruitment process, constituting the interview panel, the appointment of their

t of the Auditor-Generol on The Nqtionql Government Aflrmatiee Action Fund (NGAAF) for the year ended
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representatives to the interview panel and compiling reports among other functions. As
a result, the recruitment process was in breach of the NGAAF policres.

5.2 Lack of Board's Approval of the List of Selected Candidates for lnterview

The Shortlisting Committee's terms of reference required the Committee to prepare and
submit a shortlisting report to the Chief Executive Officer for the Board's adoption.
Although the Committee prepared and submitted a shortlisting report to the Chief
Executive Officer through lnternal Memo MPSGAA/SDGAA/NGAAF/2 dated
26 May, 2023 containing 235 candidates shortlisted, the report was not signed by the
Shortlisting Committee members to confirm ownership and authenticity of the shortlisted
candidates. Further, no Board meeting minutes were provided for audit review indicating
that the shortlist was adopted or ratified by the Board.

5.3 Failure to Declare Conflict of lnterest

There was no documentary evidence indicating that the Shortlisting and lnterviewing
Committees signed a declaration whether members of the Shortlisting and Selection
Committees or the interview panels had any conflict of interest in the recruitment process.
This was contrary to Paragraph 2.16.3 of the NGAAF Human Resource Policy &
Procedure manual 2023. ln the absence of the declaration, the integrity of the process
may have been compromised.

5.4 lrregular Participation of an lntern in the lnterview and Selection Panel

Review of the interview score sheets revealed that the interview panel included a human
resource intern. The intern was not appointed as a member of the lnterviewing and
Selection Committee but participated in the interview process as a panelist, awarded
scores and signed the interview score sheets. lt was also not explained why the intern or
junior staff could interview a person for a higher position than the interviewer.

5.5 lrregularities in Ranking and Selection of Candidates

Re-computation of the average scores recorded in the interview report from the score
sheets reflected errors as tabulated below;

County Applicant lnterview Report Averaqe Recomputed Average
1 Mombasa A 55.8 53.3
2 Tana River B 60.3 478
3 Samburu c 26.8 33.5
4 Siaya D 53.4 50.5

As indicated above, in the interview report for the candidate 2 who applied to be County
Coordinator-Tana River County, had scored an average oI 47.8, re-computed from the
score sheets. However, during the ranking, the applicant was awarded an average of 60.3
marks making him rank number 1 and was subsequently appointed as the County
Coordinator for Tana River County. Had the anomaly not occurred, the second-ranked
applicant who had 56.6 marks would have been top-ranked applicant and therefore
appointed instead of the person picked by the Selection Committee.

Report o/ the Auditor-Ceneral on The Nqtionql Covernment Alfirmative Action Fund (NCAAF) for the year ended
30 June, 2023
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Candidate Average Score (%) Ranking by Selection Panel
67 1A

2B 62
c 60.25 J

D 47.5 4
E 30.25 5

urther, a scrutiny of the interview and selection report revealed instances of biased hiring
rlactices. ln Homabay County, candidate 2 was chosen instead of the best-ranked
dndidate without justification on why the beslrank candidate was not recommended for
ppointrnent. Evaluation of the score sheets revealed the following ranking and selection:

.p f"ilur" to Fill Vacant Positions

Icords indicated that the advertisement called for interested candidates to fill the forty-
ven (47) vacant positions for all the Counties in Kenya. Management, however, did not
nduct interviews for lsiolo County. ln addition, the Management discarded the interview

Coring for Nyeri County and retained Gender officers from the State Department for
bnder who were serving in the positions

he selection committee recorded the interview scores and ranking for Nyeri County as
lows

Candidate Scores Ranking
A 685 1

B 60.5 2

C 45 3

D 30.75 4
E 30.25 5

pcords indicated that the successful candidate for Makueni County was rejected by the
ounty Patron in writing and stated her preferred candidate who was ranked second and
bsequently appointed as the County Coordinator. This was contrary to the provisions
the Human Resource Policy and Procedure Manual, which states that staff are
ruited based on merit after undergoing a recruitment exercise and not based on

rsonal preferences

Failure to Sign Report

t

Sur interviewing panel members and the secretary to the Committee signed the panel
ort, while one member did not sign the report. This was contrary to Paragraph 2.17.5
he NGAAF Human Resource Policy and Procedure manual 2023, which provides that
panel members shall sign the report and the secretary of the committee shall submit
report to the CEO within twenty-one (21) working days from the last date of the

t of rhe Auditor-General on The National Covernment Alfrmotiee Aclion Fund (NGAAF) ftr the year ended
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interview. No justification or dissenting opinion by the member was provided for
confirmation.

5.8 Failure to Recruit Persons Living with Disabilities

Analysis of the long list of applicants for the County Coordinator position indicates that
twenty-seven (27) persons living with disabilities applied for the job, out of which, the
shortlisting panel picked only four who were shortlisted for the interview but none were
appointed. A review of interview scores revealed that the candidate for Homabay County
scored 60.25% and met the pass mark of 60%. However, the Committee did not
recommend the candidate to be considered for appointment. This was contrary to Article
54(2), which states that the State shall ensure the progressive implementation of the
principle that at least five percent of the members of the public in elective and appointive
bodies are personswith disabilities. Further, Section 7(1) and (2) of the National Cohesion
and lntegration Act,2008 provides that all public establishments shall seek to represent
the diversity of the people of Kenya in the employment of staff and no public establishment
shall have more than one-third of its staff from the same ethnic community.

5.9 Anomalies in Appointment and Deployment of County Coordinators

During the year under review, the Fund did in appointment and deployment of the County
Coordinators. However, the report of the interview for the County Coordinators was
signed on 20 July, 2023 by the interview and selection panelist and subsequently, the
candidates recommended for appointment were issued with offer of appointment letters
on 27 July, 2023. However, the Board did not ratify the appointments.

Further, no offer of appointment letters were issued to the candidates selected for the
Nakuru and Wajir counties. Further, no appointment letters or contracts were issued and
kept in the candidates' files. This was contrary to Paragraph 2.22.2 ot the NGAAF Human
Resource Policy and Procedure Manual 2023 which states that the employee will be
required to acknowledge the letter of appointment and append his signature before or on
the date of engagement. A copy of the letter shall be placed in the personal file.

ln addition, background checks for the appointed County Coordinators were not
performed. This was contrary to Paragraph 2.17 .3 ol lhe NGAAF Human Resource Policy
and Procedure Manual 2023 which states that the Fund shall conduct background checks
for candidates to be recruited

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law and the regularity of the
recruitment of County Coordinators, could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAl) 4000. The Standard requires that I comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
comply, in all material respects, with the authorities that govern them. I believe that the
audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
conclusion.

Report of the Auditor-Genen on The Nationql Aovernment Alfirmative Action Fund (NGAAF) for the year ended
30 June, 2023
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EPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
ND GOVERNANCE

onclusion

required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
cedures performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on

ffectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my
ort, lconfirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that

ternal controls, risk management and governance were not effective

asis for Conclusion

. Corporate Governance and Risk Management

view of the Fund internal controls, governance and risk management strategies
ealed the following weaknesses

i) The Board Performance evaluation was not submitted to the State Corporations
Advisory Committee (SCAC).

(ii1 fn" Fund Board and Management did not to implement some of the strategic
I proposals in the NGAAF Strategic Plan 201812019 lo 202212023.

(iii) The Audit Committee met only once instead of the recommended four times during
the year under review contrary to Section 179(1 ) of the Public Finance Management

] (National Government) Regulations, 2015 which states that the Audit Committee

] shall meet at least once every three months.
l

(iv) fne Fund did not have Approved instruments to guide its operations such as an' Approved Communication Policy, Staff Welfare Policy, Approved ICT Policy and
I Asset Management Policy.

The Fund did not have structures and guidelines for management of Fund activities
and assets during transition period when there is change of County patrons or County
coordinators leading inefficiencies in fund operations and assets are prone to misuse.

the circumstances, the effectiveness of the internal controls, risk management and
verall governance at the Fund could not be confirmed.

Failure to Automate Fund Operations

eview of the Fund operations revealed that the Fund uses manual systems to prepare
financial records in the form of spreadsheets instead of an Enterprise Resource

lanning (ERP) system approved by the National Treasury. The manual system requires
qman intervention and is prone to errors and fraud

the circumstances, the effectiveness of the internal controls, risk management and
erall governance at the Fund could not be confirmed.Y

qforl o/ lhe Audilor-General on Thc National Covernnent Aflirnutivc Action Fund (NOAAF) for thc yaar eruled
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3. Lack of Agreements on Storage of Goods at the Counties

Review of mechanisms put in place by the Fund Management to safeguard assets from
loss or misuse, it was noted that most of the NGAAF county offices were using privately
owned facilities instead of public facilities for storage of assets such as tanks, tents,
mattresses and car wash machines before distribution of the items to the respective
beneficiaries. However, the Fund did not sign lease agreements with the private firms or
individuals for the duration the assets are kept at the private properties.

ln the circumstances, the security of the NGAAF assets could not be confirmed.

4. Non-Compliance with the Approved Human Resource Plan

The staff establishment of the Fund sets the authorized number in post employees at two
hundred and eighty-one (281). However, the number in-post during the year was sixty-
one (61) employees resulting in an understaffing ol 220 employees. A detailed review of
the establishment also indicates understaffing in various departments and carders.
Management explained that the understaffing was due to lack of adequate funding, and
effort is being made to source more funds from The National Treasury.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall governance
were operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Fund's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Fund or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
ac{ivities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

Report of the Auditor-Gener.tl on The Nstional Governme Atrtrmatire Action Fund (NGAAF) for the teer ended
30 June, 2023
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ose charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial
orting process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance
h relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes
d systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to overall
vernance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
ntrol environment.

ditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

e audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
tements as a whole are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error,
d to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
icle 229(7) of the Constitution of Kenya. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
surance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will

ys detect a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can
se from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
y could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
basis of these financial statements.

addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
rformed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
ancial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in

pliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) o't the Constitution

d submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

rther, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
mpliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
cordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit

audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) ot lhe Constitution. My consideration of
internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that

ght be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
ich the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
uce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
ounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may

cur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
rforming their assigned functions.

ause of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
sstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of

ctiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
dequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
licies and procedures may deteriorate

$
p

part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
gement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

t of lhe Auditor-General on The National Governme Alrtrmative Action Fund (NGAAF) for the yeor ended
Juna. 102 3
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. ,ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund's
ability to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, lam
required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to sustain
its services.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Fund to express an opinion on the financial statements.

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA un Sa
AUDITOR.GENERAL

Nairobi

22 February,2024

Report o/ the Auditor-General on The National Governntent AlJirmdtile Aclk)n Fund (NGAAF) for the year endcd
30 June, 2023
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Stat€m€nt of Flnanclal performa nce for the year ended 30 June 2023

202212O23T 2O2Ll2022
Kshs. Kshs.

2,186,000,000 2,t85,822,945

il€t Surplus/Deficit for the year

notes set out on pages 7 to 22 form an int

Financlal Statements set out on pages I to

746 770
2,186,764,178 2,L97,569,7L5

822,922,843 i 2,300,474,2t4

28,051,098), zo,ASt,+ot

64,335,35s 83,819,071

13,958,610 73,700,449

3,16s,081 1,196,9t2

3,641,500 5,631,600
44,629,r35 40,492,800

,703 627 2,477,172t447
(38,469,238)

o6 o60 55 (289,542,732)
2o6,ooo,ssr 28,O1,.,97O)

f these Finarrcrai Statements

ned on behalf of the Board of Directors

1

)

nne N Wang'omb€
cipal SGGrGtrry

D6pt for Gcnder
PSIFIHR P (K)

Chief Exec

CPA (K),iDr. Maurice Gichuhi
ICPAK ]rlo. 6325
Director Finance

Sasaka OGWI

I

Notes

Revenue from non-exchange
transactions

Transfers from the National Government
-Sttte Department for Gender 5

Revenue form exchange
transactions

r Income 7 764,178
Total revenue
Ex s€s
Transfer to Other Government units -
Counties Expenditure 8

Use of goods & services 9

Employee costs 10

11Boad Expenses

Repairs and maintenance 72

M&EEx enses 13(a)
Emergencies to Counties 1a(a)

Total e nses
Galn/Loss on salvage 20
Surplus/Deficit for the yoar

/

ral

we
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Nationet Government Alfirmalive Action Fund
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15. Stat€ment of Financlal PosItlon as at 30 Jun€ 2023

202L 2022
Kshs.

610,895,558

838 287
6Lt,733$45

t76, 083,723
L76 083 723
787,8L7,567 i

18 852,058
952,000

L9,8L4,o58
L9,814,058

91 179,O20

676,824,490
768,003,509

747 8L7,567

The Financial Statements set out on page re signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

by:

Ms Ann Wang'ombe RoY Sa a, OGWI CPA K) Dr. Maurice Gichuhi

Princlpal S€cretarY
State Dept for Gender

FCIPSI
Chief

(K) ICPA No. 6325
Direc r Financer

2

2022 2023Notes

Assets

Kshs,

CunBnt ass€ts
1,804,347,96117 (a)

18

L,804,347t967,

uivalentsCash and cash
Receivables

Total Curr€nt
NOn-curnEnt assets

188,863,72319Property, olant and equipment
L88,863,723Totel Non-curr€nt Ass€ts

t,993aLL,684Total assoE :,:',.,'

Llabilltl€s

r8,323,92315

16

L9,,47,623

0082
19,L47,6?!-

Current llablllties
Provisions for GratuitY

Total Currsnt Liabilities
Totrl llabllltles

Payab les

t
I

T8e 149,88514(b)
I Laaq,gw,vs
| !,974,064,060

1,993,211,683
Total Liaballties and C.apital

Accumul ated su
lrnerg

rYes

lus

d ReservesTotal

t Reseryec

h-al2l

RMIC
utive

o"..,..H.l1)s.)B Date o"..,...?tlI
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of Changes in Net Assets for the year ended 30 lune 2023Statement

Total

096 015 791

Add:
Eme en Reserve

Lessr
nditure on Eme encles

Accumulated SurPlus

Balilnce c/d as at June 30,
2023

NGAAFRegulations,2016statesthattherebecreatedanemergencyreserveof20/o
a*.y yaarl The monies shall only be disbursed when need arises'

The accumulated surplus refers to surplus from the starelhent of Financial Position'

Emergency
Reserves

gg,o7L,820

(328,011,9701

ennditure on Eme

00i
-t4

Ex 40,492,800

1 202L

40 492 800

328 011 970

Su lus

63 9560 94

_11?pQ0,000

Balance b fatJu

en Reserves

Accumulated

Add:
Emer
L€i3l

Surplus for the pefiod - 2ozL I 2022

768,003,509

768,O03,509

Ballnc€ c/d as at June 30,

BalBnco b/f as at JulY 1,2022

2022
9t,L79,O2O 676,824,489

676,824,4899L,L79 020

42 500 00042 600 000

1,196,183,014

L,964,L86,s23

44 62{l_44 q 135

150 5

1 77!i884 9L489 149 885
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202212023Notes
Kshs.

Carh llows from op€ratlng actlvltles
Transfers from other Government - State

Total Recei

De rtment for Gender
Other Income

P!ym!nts

822,922,848
Transftr to other govem b-ffi entlty - county
Expendlture '.::
Use of goods & Servlces
Employee costs
Board Expenses
Repalr & Maintenance

3,641,500M&E
EmerEency Fund 44,629,t35

980,531,774Totrl Prymcnt!
298 179 555N€t Crth flow from op€ratlns actlvlties

Cash flows from lnvestlng actlvities
Purchase of property, plant, equipment and
lnta n lble assets
Proceeds from sales of motor vehlcles (Net)

il€t caah flowr used in investlng
actlvltlcs
Carh llows from financing activities
I{et crlh flows used ln financing
actlvlH€s

INot lncr€asc/(decrsate) in cash and
cath ceuival€nts

ffi 610,895,5582072Cash and cash uivalents at 1 Jul

L7. Statement of Cash flows as at 30 June 2023

_19q,olqpqQ 7 185 822
764 178

202L 2f)2
Kshs.

945
770

L78 187 559 7LS
_-)f3Q,

2

18 64

-.-.'-.,7

300 414 274
27 697 610 33 555 494

690 90 026 41264,

,)

240
L4 234 910

165 081 196 9 1) t

13 33
1

1 20 404

t2 780 000

6,63L6qo l

19_422,80Q
485 749 381

2 030 762

1 ?,gloz.62

l

193
9 462

L,8O!1347-P62 61qq95.558

1 452 4 296 148 904

Carh O cash equavalonts as at 30 Ju
2023

IPSAS 2 allows an Entity to present the ca
The above cashflow has been presented

Roy Sasa
FCIPSIFIH
Chief Execu

";;;ffi;Prlnclpal Secr€trry
St t DGpt foi G€ndcr

tements using the direct or indirect method.
e direct method

oGwl
(K)

cPA (K) D . Maurice Gichuhi
ICPAK No. 6325
Director Fi nce

a

Drte I'tr'rs Date: nl

4
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National Government Affirmative Action Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements

18, Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amount for the year ended 30 June 2023

Original
budget

Adjustments Final budget Actual on
comparable

basis

Performance
difference

olo of
utilization

2022-2023 2022-2023 2022-2023 2022-2()23 2022-2023
Details Kshs. Kshs. Kshs. Kshs.
Revenue
Transfers from other government
entities 2,186,000,0002,130,000,000 56,000,000 2,186,000,000
Other Income 764,t78 7&,r78
Total income 2,130,0o0,oo0 56,0OO,OO0 2,186,O00,OOO 2,L46,7il,174 7 ,178

Expenses
Transfers to Counties - Counties
Expenditure 2.033.4s7,629 r,2r0,534,781 601.938.300.000 95,157,629 822.922.848
Use of qoods & services .10,648,936 40,648,936 28,051.098 t2,597,839 31

Employee Cost 88,720,638 2,000,000 90,720,638 64.335.355 26.385,283 29
Board Expenses

Reoairs and maintenance
21,336,600 21,336,600 r 3,958.6 t0 7,377,990 35
3,025.000 3,025.000 3,165,081 (140,081) (0s)

M&E 42 600 000
Eme ncies to Counties 42 600 000

(33,566,176) 9,033.824 3.641,500 5,392,324 60
42,600,000 44,629,135 (2.029,13s) (0s)

Total expenditur€ ' ,

Surplus/Deficit
2,t7t,23,,,174 63,591,453i 'i ".2P4A;a22,62' 98O,7O3,627 1,260,119,000 56
(47,23r,174) (7,591,4s3) G4,422,624) 1,206,060,551 (1,260,883,178)
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National Government Aflirmative Action Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statemenls
For the year ended June 30, 2023

Budget notes
1. On dlfferences betw€en actua! and budgeted amounts (10o/o over/under)

rPsAs 24.14

county Expenditure - The underutilization under county expenditure was due to late

exchequer release and delays in appointment of the county commlttees. This made it
impossible to vet the projects in good time and therefore underutilization of funds before

30h June 2023 as planned.

Use of goods & services - Underutilization was because of delays in exchequer release

that hampered the procurement of goods and services.

Employee oosts - The underutilization under employee costs was due to delay in
payment of gratuity and Management of Counties was made by Gender Officers after the
exit of the substantive coordinators.

Board Expenses - Underutilization under Board expenses were due to rescheduling of
Board oversights to subsequent period.

Monitoring & Evaluation - Under absorption in M & E was due to rescheduling of
planned activities to subsequent period.

Generally, there was a decline in board's planned activities which was occasioned by
change of guard and reconstitution of the committees.

2, On differenoes between original and final budget (reallocations or other
causes) IPSAS 24.29

Transfers to Counties - The adjustments is because of unspent balances returned at the
beginning of the year.

Employee Costs - The board approved additional budgetary allocation on staff costs and
travel expendlture.

Monitoring & Evaluation - During the year, the Board approved some reallocation to
other cost items as reflected in M & E movement schedule.

3. The tota! of actual on comparable basis tied to the statement of Financial
Performance and there were no differences in accounting basis,

6



tional Government Affirmative Action Fund
nual Report and Financial Statements
r (he ear ended June 30, 2023

llotes to the Financial Statements

General Information

National Government Afflrmative Action Fund is established by and derives its authority
and accountability from Public Finance Management Act (No. of 20L2). The National

Government Affirmative Action Fund is wholly owned by the Government of Kenya and is

domiciled in Kenya. The National Government Affirmative Action Fund's princlpal activity is

financial support to the affirmative groups.

Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost, unless stated

otherwise. The Cash flow statement is prepared using the direct method. The financial

statements are prepared on accrual basis. The preparation of financial statements is
conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the use

of estimates and assumptions. It also requires management to exercise judgement in the
process of applying the entity's accounting policies.

The financial statements are presented in Kenya shillings, which is the functional and

reporting currency ofthe entity. The accounting policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, State

Corporation Act and International Public Sector AcCounting Standards (IPSAS). The

accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied.

c
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National Government Affirmative Action Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June J0,,2023

Notes to the Financia! Statements (Continued)

3, Adoption of New and Revised Standards
i. New and amended standards and interpretations in issue effective in the year ended 30

lune 2023.

standard Effective date and impact
IPSAS 41:
Financial

Instruments

Applicable: 1d January 2023:
The objective of IPSAS 41 is to establish principles for the financial

reporting of financial assets and liabillties that will present relevant

and useful information to users of financlal statements for their

assessment of the amounts, timing and uncertainty of an Entity's

future cash flows.

IPSAS 41 provides users of financial statements with more useful

information than IPSAS 29, by:
. Applying a single classification and measurement model for

flnancial assets that considers the characteristics of the asset's

cash flows and the objective for which the asset is held;

.'Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss model that

is applicable to all financial instruments subject to impairment

testing; and
. Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadens the

hedging arrangements in scope of the guidance. The model

develops a strong link between an Entity's risk management

strategies and the accounting treatment for instruments held as

p'art of tfre risk management strategy.

The standard is currently applicable on cash payments only since

the Entity depends totally on exchequer release. However, other

form of financial instrument may be relevant and applicable in

future.
Applicable: 1s January 2023
The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful

representativeness and comparability of the information that a

reportlng Entity provides in its financial statements about social

benefits. The information provided should help users of the

financial statements and general-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the Entity.

(b) The key features of the operation of those social benefit

schemes; and

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity's

IPSAS 42: Social
Benefits

8



tional (lovernmcnt Affirmative Action Fund
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r the ear endcd June J0,2023

financial performance, financial position and cash flows.

The standard is relevant to the entity as it has impact on the

welfare of the staff. Currently, employees are members of NSSF

and Lap fund.

Amendments to
other IPSAS
resulting from
IPSAS 41,
Financial
Instruments

Applicable: 1st January 2023:
a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to

the components of borrowing costs which were

inadveftently omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples

on hedging and credit risk which were inadvertently omitted

when IPSAS 41 was issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for
accounting for financial gya!:entee contracts which were

inadvertently omltted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classifying

financial instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS

which were inadvetently omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued.

The amendments of the standard shall guide future applicability.

Applicable 1d January 2023
. IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial Information about the General

Government Sector. Amendments to refer to the latest System

of National Accounts (SNA 2008).
. IPSAS 39: Employee Benefits

Now deletes the term composite social securlty benefits as it is no

longer defined in IPSAS. ).

. IPSAS 29: Financial instruments: Recognition and
Measurement

Standard no longer included in the 2023 IPSAS handbook as it is

now superseded by IPSAS 4l which is applicable from ld January

2023.
The improvement of the standards shall be relevant in future
application and adoption.

Other
improvements to
IPSAS

I



National Government Affirmative Action Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

ii. New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet

effective in the year ended 30 June 2023.

Standard Effective date and impact
IPSAS 43:
Disclosure of
leases

Applicable 1d January 2025
The standard sets out the prlnciples for the recognition,

measurement, presentation, and disclosure of leases. The

objective is to ensure that lessees and lessors provide relevant

information in a manner that faithfully represents those

transactions. This informatlon gives a basis for users of financial

statements to assess the effect that leases have on the financial

position, financial performance and cashflows of an Entity.

The new standard requires entities to recognize, measure and

present information on right of use assets and lease liabilities.

The Entity operates within leased premises and the standard are

applicable to ensure that critical information is well captured before

signlng the agreement.

IPSAS
Non-Current
Assets Held
Sale
Discontinued
Operataons

44

for
and

Applicable ld January 2025
The Standard requires,

Assets that meet the criterla to be classified as held for sale to be

measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs

to sell and the depreciation of such assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be

presented separately in the statement of financial position and the

results of discontinued operations to be presented separately in the

statement of fi nancial performance.

Currently the standard does not apply. However, future sales of

assets identified for disposal shall adopt the standards.

iii. Early adoption of standards
The entity did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in the year ended 30 June

2023.

l0
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otes to the Financial Statemcnts (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a) Revenue recognition

i) Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfers from other government entaties
Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured

at fair value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services and
property) if the transfer is free from conditions and it is probable that the economic

benefits or service potential related to the asset will flow to the entity and can be measured

reliably.

lnterest Income
Interest income earned is accrued using the effective yield method and rates as negotiated
by the Board. Currently, the applicable rates are 3.0olo, 3.5o/o, 4.0o/o and 4.5olo for amounts
between 10M-20M, 20M-50M, 50M-100M and, 100M and above respectively. The tax on

interest lncome ls accountable as a normal tax.

I u) suaget information
The original budget for FY 2022-2023 was approved by the National Assembly. However,
there was subsequent additional appropriation made to the approved budget in
accordance with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities.

The National Government Affirmative Action Fund budget is prepared on a different basis
to the actual income and expenditure disclosed in the financial statements. The financial
statements are prepared on accrual basis using a classification based on the nature of
expenses in the statement of financial performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a
cash basis. The amounts in the financial statements were recast from the accrual basis to
the cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on the same basis as the approved
budget. A comparison of budget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to
the approved budget, is then presented in the statement of comparison of budget and
actual amounts.

In addition to the Basis difference, adjustments to amounts in the financial statements are

also made for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the

presentation of the financial statements and the approved budget.

A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts and the actuals as per the

Statement of Financial Performance has been presented under page 5 of these Financial

Statements.
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Notes to thc Financial Statements (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

c) Transfers to other government entities
Transfers or disbursement to other government units are measured at fair value and

recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services and property). National

Government Affirmative Action Fund County(s) disbursement is guided by NGAAF

Regulations, 2016 Section 11(3). From the total budgetary allocation, ninety-one (91)

percent is disbursed equally to all two hundred and ninety (290) constituencies while two

(2) percent of the total allocation remain unallocated but reserved for emergencies to

affirmative groups. Therefore, the more the constituencies a county has, the more the

budgetary allocation.

d) Property, plant and. equipment
All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Cost includes expenditure that is

directly attrlbutable to the acquisition of the items. National Government Affirmatlve Action
Fund initiated the process of developing a depreciatlon policy document which will allow
the entity calculate useful life of property, plant and equipment. The entity started the
process of developing,a Bolicy document to guide in management of assets. However, this
has not been finalized so as to recognize individual assets with specific useful lives and

depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is peformed, its cost
shall be recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if
the recognitlon criteria are satisfied, All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized
in surplus or deficit as incurred. Where an asset is acquired In a non-exchange transaction
for nil or nominal consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value under review.

e) Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. The Natlonal Government Affirmative Action
Fund has staff on contractual terms of three years. After the expiry of the period the Fund

is legally expected to honour its financial obligation in payment of Gratuity for the services
rendered to the respective Officers. The expense relating to any provision is presented in
the statement of financial performance net of any reimbursement.

O Contingent liabilities
The Entity does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses details of any
contingencies in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote. In the year
2022-2023, the Fund had no legal dispute.

g) Natur€ and purpose of Reserves
The National Government Affirmative Action Fund creates and maintains reserves in terms
of Emergency Reserves as guided in paragraph 13 (1) of the NGAAF Regulations, 2016
that states that 'a portion equivalent to 2o/o of the total allocation in each year' shall
remain unallocated by the Board and shall only be available to cover emergencies faced by

t2
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?
rl

affirmative groups. The Emergency Reserves shall only be disbursed by the Board when
need arises.

) Monitoring & Evaluation
he NGAAF Regulation 2016, provides that 2olo of the total allocation shall be for Monitoring
nd Evaluation. The Entity maintains accrued balances under monitoring and evaluation that
apportioned to M & E activities and various operations as approved by the Board.

) Changes in accounting policies and estimates
he National Government Affirmative Action Fund recognizes the effects of changes in
tcounting policy retrospectively. The effects of changes in accounting policy are applied

fospectively if retrospective application is impractical.

Related parties
e National Government Affirmative Action Fund regards a related party as a person or an

htity witfr the ability to exet control individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence

r the Entity, or vice versa. Members of key management are regarded as related pafties

nd comprise the directors, the CEO and senior managers.

) cash and cash equivalents
sh and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, shot-term deposits on

&ll and highly liquid investments wlth an original maturity of three months or less, which are

readily conveftible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes

in value. Bank account balances include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and at

various commercial banks at the end of the financial year. For the purposes of these financlal
gtatements, cash and cash equivalents include shoft term cash imprests and advances to

authorized public officers and/or institutions which were not surrendered or accounted for at

dle end of the financial year.

r)
W
,1e

Comparative figures
here necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or
configured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

Jn)subsequent events

fhere have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant
impact on the financial statements for the year ended Jurie 30,2023.

E. Sagnificant Judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty
the preparation of the National Government Affirmative Action Fund's Financial Statements

ln conformity with IPSAS requires management to make judgments, estimates and

pssumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,

bnd the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However,

t3
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accbunting Policies (Continued)
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a

material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty

at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

The National Government Affirmative Action Fund based its assumptions and estimates on

parameters available when the consolidated Financial Statements were prepared. However,

existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due

circumstances arising beyond the control of the Entity. Such changes are reflected in the

assumptions when they occur. IPSAS 1.140

Useful lives and residual values
The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to

inform potential future use and value from dlsposal:

> The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts employed by the Entity

> The nature of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and

processes

i The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed

> Availability of funding to replace the asset

> Changes in the market in relation to the asset

14
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Transfers from State Department for Gender Affairs (Exchequer Receipts)

2022-2023

Kshs.

2(J21-2()22
T?ansfers from National Government
Ministries - State Department for Gender Kshs.
First Quarters 1,065,000,000

Third Quarters - l0lOU2023 s32,500,000

s32.500,000

1,065,000,000

1,065,000,000

- 0110212023

Fourth Quarters - 1310612023 55,822,945

- 2310612023 56,000,000

Total 2,186,OOO,OOO 2,L85,822,945

During the financial year 2022-2023, the Fund received its budgetary allocation in
three -fold; 10 lanuary 2023, Ld February 2Q23 and 13m June 2023. Further, a

supplementary budget to cushion deficit in PE was received on 23d June 2023.

Other Income {;t.i,. .

2022-2023 202L-2022

Dcscription Rshs, Kshs.

Sale of Tenders 80,000

InErest from NGAAF Counties accounts - Equity
Bank

764,t78 1,666,770

To,tal ,u,178 1,746,77O

The above interest was received from NGAAF Equity's'Counties accounts.

, Transfers to other government Units - Counti6 Expenditures

2022-2023 2022-2023
lGhs.

202L-2022
Kshs. KShs.

s/r{o. COUl{TY Disburs€ment Expendlture Expendltur€
1

2

BARINGO COUNTY

BOMET COUNTY

18,559,518.10 18,562,518.10 45,507,038.20
6,103,474.00

27,885,796.65
6,104,926.90

26,579,478.06
42,596,969.00

3 BUNGOMA COUNTY 77,239,346.55

4 BUSIA COUNTY 24,273,32t.75 24,273,32t.75 50,283,297.00

5 ELGEYO MARAKWET

EMBU COUNTY

t3 ,122,28t .40 . L2;727 ,998.80 30,218,585.32

6 13,7t7,374.65 t\498,777.80
20,050,148.99
20,839,957.20

34,025,331.35

7 GARISSA COUNTY 20,404,098.75 41,820,554.99

8 HOMA BAY COUNTY 25,532,73t.20 66,409,156.15

9 ISIOLO COUNTY 6 ,683 ,770 .60 6,827,423.65 13,691,174.00

10 KA]IADO COUNTY 11,722,500.00 6,973,0t2.93 44,345,798.70

11 KAKAMEGA COUNTY 37,463,664.60 38,805,3 r2.80 100,425,8s3.s2

t2 KERICHO COUNTY 21,724,627.75 20,649,3t3.82 40 ,250 ,417 .55

13 KIAMEU COUNTY 35,965,050.40 35,427,74t.00 92,495,610.00

t4 KILIFI COUNTY 23,029,384.40 23,029,384.40 50, r31,810.1s

15 KIRINYAGA COUNTY 6,405,453.05 5,981,289.00 33,374,003.00

It) KISII COUNTY
KISUMU COUNTY

29,928,684.20 26,964,7U.50 55,410,909.05

t7 7 ,747,385.35 7,726,t34.05 60,507,507.40

18 KITUI COUNTY 27,068,715.50 17 ,66L,934.50 74,190,984.00

19 KWALE COUNTY 9,938,595.30 LO ,007 ,673 .40 25,202,929.99

20 LAIKIPIA COUNTY 3 ,558 ,697 .49 20,07 t,732.99

5

.3,558,697.49
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L4 ,910 ,127 .r0

The above table refle.cltotal disbursement and expenditure to 47 counties in the year

ended June 30, 2023.

9. Use of oods & Services

The above table reflects various expenditure under use of goods and services.
Other relates to sanitary and cleaning materials during the year.

4,073,115.604,135,684.202L LAMU COUNTY
92,258,999.002s,342,450.0039,405,314.8022 MACHAKOS COUNTY

18,042,795.40 4t ,658 ,024 .5519,045,527.3023 T4AKUENI COUNTY
t6,78t,937.3518,089,005.ssMANDERA24 53,757,626.00

33,726,349.90tt,707,488.75tt ,677 ,838 .6025 MARSABIT COUNTY
12,730,596.05 7 4 ,404 ,414 .2013,70s,808.50MERU COUNW26

66,300,528.9921,681,600.7621,655,398.1027 MIGORI COUNTY
10,994,357.55 46,069,105.0010,886,961.80MOMBASA COUNTY28

62,979,906.8824,30s,901.0026,450,961.9s29 MURANGA COUTITY
139 ,32t ,970 .6071,395,8t7.9081,273,355.0530 NAIROBI COUNTY

28,910,4s8.75 83,554,680.0531,s68,796.00NAKURU CPUNTY31
40,744,424.0520,378,673.4020,378,673.4032 NANDI COUNTY

11,643,680.0011,643,680.0033 NAROK COUNTY
27 ,153 ,299 .20

644.4542,208,
13,0s6,084.3013 ,349 ,723 .2034 NYAMIRA COUNTY
16,572,865.00 37 ,533 ,317 .50L6,571,929.3535 NYANDARUA COUNTY
r8,268,O02.71t8,267 ,977.0036 NYERI COIJNTY 49 697 900.00

28,325,890.509,742,605.60 9,182,080.00SAMBURU COUNTY
56,ss4,218.6519,369,992.00 18,795,997.90SIAYA COUNTY38

4,876,655.15 35,698,698.004,945,553.1539 TAITA TAVETA COUNTY
26,2t6,9s2.70t2,453,473.83 r0,292,782.0340 TANA RIVER

8.932.669.00 20,217,655.908,956,121.604l THARAKA NTTHI COUNTY
33,407,048.0016.s8?,674.00 16,583,083.4042 TRANS NZOIA COUNTY

16,992,000.00 43,813,280.04TURKANA COUNTY t7,602,920.4043
20 ,LL3 ,448 .25 38,2s5,598.58UASIN GISHU COUNTY 22,306,439.2544
15,854,364.00 41,638,984.15VIHIGA COUNTY 15,854,364.0045

44 ,848 ,863 .7815,513,080.20 15,513,080.2046 WA.]IR COUNTY
13,651,053.9513,65 r,053.9547 WEST POKOT COUNTY 26,958,697.30

2,300,4L4,2L3.94885,920,037.92 a22,922,447.54Total

2022-2023 2021-2lJ22
Kshs. Kshs.Description

58s.190 815,549Adveftising
2,544,247 2,232,233Conferences and delegations

237,240 310,966Electricity
4,056,989 2,873,240Fuel and oil
6,125,109 7,418,765Insurance

75,490 49,680Postage

61s,090 t76,440Printing and stationery
485,990 707,460Publicity

9,t66,320 9,166,320Rental
_t

7,750,745 1,815,080Telecommunicatiori"' l
4,890,470Training 2,0s7,665

Bank Charges

401,197

138,060

218,963Other

30,857,401Total 28,O51,O98

l6
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Em ee Cost
2022-2023

Employee costs include staff salaries, travel expenses, subsistence allowances
and gratuity provision during the year, Employee related costs are Costs
incurred for NSSF and LAP Fund. The variation in cost was due to termination of
contracts for the staff.

1. Eoard Expenses

2022-2023 202L-2022
Description Kshs;, Kshs.

660,000Chairman's Honoraria 690,000
5,374,000Sitting Allowances 4,797,500

Medical Insurance
Induction & Training
Travel & Accommodation

499 851
2,235,333

5,661,198
Other allowances 1,563,700 5,507,765
Total directors'
emoluments 13,958,610 13,700,u9

Directors' emoluments refer to sitting allowances during Board meetings and
other official forums while other expenses include hire of conference facilities
and lunches where applicable. The variation in expenditure was due to recruitment
of the CEO where Eoard was involved.

12. Repaars and Maintenance
202!-2022

Description Kshs.
Vehicles 353,850

Furniture's and fiftinqs t02,849 237,4t2
Computers and accessories L,5L1,625 605,650

Total repairs and maintenance 3,165,081 L,196,912

2022-7023
Kshs.

1,550,607

Repair and maintenance for the current financial year reflects higher amount
as compared to comparative year since there was major services on vehicles since

they are aged thus increases wear and tear hence regular maintenance.

202L-2022
Employee Costs rchs. Kshs.
Salaries and wages 47,292,342 61,029,988
Employee related costs 2,076,945 t,86L,434
Travel, accommodation, subsistence
and other allowances

t4,966,069
10,260,060

Extraneous allowances 4,043,27t
6,624,3L8Provision for Gratuity

64,33S,355 83,819,071Employee costs

t7
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13.(a)M&EExpenses

The above table shows expenditures incurred by NGAAF Secretariat during
M & E fleld activities. The variation was due to delay in release of 3'd &
4th Exchequer.

13.(b)M&EMovement

2022-2023 2021-2022
Description Kshs. Kshs,

Balance b/forward 65,356,857 49,638.388
Add:
Allocation f or 20.21 -,2022 42,500,000 42,600,000

Total LO7,956,857 92,238,388
Less
M & E Activity 3,641,500 6,631,600

Development of HR Instruments 1,1 11,600

3,056,989Fuel & Lubricants 1,924,866

NHIF - Lump sum 6,t25,1O9 7,418,765

Skill Development 2,394,900

Purchase of Motor vehicle 12,780,000

Board to,492,478 8,511,400

Total Expenditure 37,2O7,676 26,8811531
Bal c/forward 70,749,L81 65,356,857
The above table shows movement of the M & E allocation to various cost items
and the balance thereof.

14.(a) Emergencaes to Counties (Annex I)

Emergency Funds 2022-2023 202t-2022
Kshs. Kshs,

Counties disbursement 44,629,t35
44,629,135

40,492,800

Total 40,492,800
Disbursement of Emergencies to Counties is as guided in the NGAAF Regulations
Section 13(3). During the year, the Board supported affirmative groups in 36
Counties.

l8

2022-2023 2021-2022
Description Kshs. Kshs.

M & E Activity 3,641,500 6,631,600

Total 3,6411500 6,631,600
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. (b) Emergency Reserves

The above table reflects emergency reserves as at 30 June 2023.

15 (a). Provision for Gratuity

Provision at the end of the year 18 323 924

The above balance refers to gratuity provision as at

5 (b). Gratuity payment

l/ /\
30 iune, 2023

202L-2022
Kshs. Kshs,

Bal b/forward !9,974,944 2,077,559
Add:
Allocation durinq the year (supplementary) 30,000,000
Total
Less

L9,978,944 32,077,559

538,135 12,098,615
19,/f40,809 19,978,944

2022-2023
Descri !on

The above table reflects balances available for gratuity under cash & cash

equivalent

2022-2023 2(J2L-2022
Oescription Kshs. Kshs.
Balance b/forurard 9L,t79,O20 89,071,820
Add
2o/o 202L-2022 allocation 42,600,000 42,600,000
Total t33,779,O20 131,071,820
Less
Disbursements to Counties 44,629,'t35 40,492,800
Balance c/f 89,149,885 9,.,179,O20

2022-2023 202t-2022
Description
Bal b/forward
Add: Provision for n 2022-2023

Kshs. Kshs.
18,862,058 24,336,356

6,624,318

s38,135 12,098,615
18,862,058

t9
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16. Payables

2.J2t-20222022-2023
Details Kshs. Kshs.
Ba! b forward 952,000 3,960,384
Less: (3,960,384)

Kenya School of Government (360,000) 360,000
PAYE for the Board (300,000) 300,000
Supply of publicity materials (292,000) 292,000
Add:
CEO's June Salary 440,000
Board PAYE 383,700
Balance c/f 823,7OO 95 oo0

The above table relates to payables during the year. Kisii County had pending bills
totalling to Ksh 121412,466,70

17, (a) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Counties NGAAF balances relates to Counties cash books balances as at 30 June
2023. These balances also include interest earned from Equity bank accounts
which is yet to b..e transferred to main call account.

17. (b) Detailed Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents 2fJ22-2023 202L-2022
Kshs. Kshs.

Co-operative account a/c - 01141198027000 24,044,737 3,283,931
Eentral Bank a/c - 1000312602 1,7LL,388,t77 504,869,371
tounties - NGAAF Balances 68,150,869 101,075,486

lnterest from Counties accounts (Annex U) 764,t78 t,666,770

[otal cash and cash equavalents L,8O4,347,961 610,895,558

2fJ22-2023 2O2Ll2022
Kshs.Kshs.

Co-operative Bank a/c - 01141198027000 24,044,737 3,283,931
Central Bank a/c - 1000312602

89,149,885 9t,179,020Emerqency Reserves
Monitorinq & Evaluation 70,749,181 65,356,857
Gratuity 19,440,809 19,978,944
Retained for Consultative meeting between
Women Reps, Coordiriators & Board
Personnel Emolument

4 886, 1
s6,000,000

_ s,08L420
25,822,945

Counties Balances 1,47t,162,0t8 297,444,186
Sub total 1,735,432,9L4 5O4,869,372
Cash & Cash Equivalent at Counties

3,000.00Equity Bank Kabarnet Branch-1390265012167

20
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ur Bank Bomet Branch-1220265004028 1 452.90
Co-operative Bank Bungoma
Branch- 114166887190

606,318.04 1,968,738.00

33 473.3sBank Busia Branch-780264690342
Bank Iten Branch-1530264985396

ur

Ut 398,066.08 3,783.48
ut Bank Embu Branch-190265035825 300 101.30 81 504.45

Co.operative Bank Garissa
Branch- 1141376091400

L,552,O72.76 2,L67,004.36

5 907 518.24 1 2L4 744.24Branch-980255090593
rative Eank Isiolo Branch- 1 1 41437 464600

E Bank Homa Ba

Cco 1 280.60 t44 933.65
UIE Bank Ka iado Branch - 0860264663730 4 749 48?.O7

Co-operative Bank Mumias
Branch- 1 141499392500

L,34L,648.20

978.00Bank Kericho Branch-280264850363
KCB Bank Kiambu Branch-LL74787597
E UI t,076,29t.93

1,710,539.1s 2,523,774.75
111.503Bank Kilifi Braanch- 1060264992250E

KCB Mwea Branch-ll7 4744413 424 r64.05 4 512.40
2,946,02L.40 19,834,968.60

22,018.40 767.t0

Co-operative Bank Klsii East
Branch- 1141477819600
KCB Bank United Mall Branch
Kisumu- 1 184142319

49t 199.50KCB Bank Kitui Branch-1175603821 9 406 935.00
UI Bank Kwale Branch-1580265128124E 355 295.31 424 373.4t

200,091.45Co-operative Bank Nanyuki
Branch- 1141357557300

62 558.50Bank Lamu Eranch - 1590265004851E

t4 062 864.80 29 578 314.80KCB Bank Machakos Branch-1173170537
1 009 735.90 7,004.00ut Bank Wote Branch-670265000090E

2,8s4.25
29 550.15

1 307 068.20National Bank Mandera Branch-121001,145701
Bank Marsabit Branch-1010265012964u

2 760.20Bank Meru Branch- 140254985056U

26 202.66Branch-L14148273220Co-o rative Bank Mi

977 972.65

378,557.55

L2,587,068.772,145,060.95

Equity Bank Mombasa Supreme
Centre- 1560265100351
Equity Bank KenofMakutano
Branch-890265012321

9,877 ,527 .06 20,861,198.60Co-operative Bank Parliament Branch
1141201980100

2,658,337.25Equity Bank West Side Mall Nakuru -
0130265014227

UI Bank Kapsa bet Branch - 0490264982696
Bank Narok Branch - 0360265127769u

KCB N amira Branch - 1t74734L40
93s.6s
872.71

293 638.90Bank Olkalou Branch-620265004136
ri Branch-110265000038

u

U Bank
193 858.65ul bank Mararal Branch-1 10026474404

2
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Interest from Counties accounts is still held in the counties accounts and accounted for
in the statement of financial performance.

18. Receivable
Details Ft 2f)22-2023 FY 2O2L|2O22

Kshs. Kshs.
Outstanding imprest 192,800

Prepayment - National Oil L03,173
Prepayment - RH Divan 542,3ts

838,287Total
Above table shows no recelvable as at 30 June 2023

2,930,360.2s754,384.25a Branch-970264392174ul Bank SiE
467,4t3.t5t,249,637.O0Bank Voi Branch-790265LL27 14E u

68,898.00Bank Hola Branch-121026501341 1E u t,424,868.30
26,495.202,160,691.80Co-operative Bank Chuka

Branch-1141571373500
24,052.60 409.40rative Bank Kitale Branch-1141694280500Co-o

2,578.01Co-operative Bank Lodwar
Branch- 1141592086700

6t3,498.4L 2,092,991.27Co-operative Bank Eldoret-West Branch-
rr4t585424200
KCB Bank Mbale Branch - 1174729511

17,032.222,192,99t.00National W ir Branch- 1001083954000
Bank KaE u n uria Branch - 1070264794932

68,150,869 LOL,O75,487Sub total
1,666,770764,178ndixInterest from Counties accounts A

610,895,558L,8O4,347,961Total Cash & Cash equivalent

22
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19. hperty Plant & Equiprnent

Other Assets
Kshs.

Total Kshs.

40 500 000.00

176 083 722.7A

L76 083 722.74

0 536.00 138 357.20 36 29 629.s8 188 853 7

l{/B: The Fund is in the process of doing valuation of plants and equipment to ascertain the depreciation value.

00

Motor Vehicles
Kshs.

Furniture and
fiftings

Kshs.

Computers
Kshs,

At lJuly 2021 175,570,535.00 3,445,200.00 1,138,357.20 36,429,629.s8 | ZtO,SgS,t ZZ.t A
Additions
Disposals (40,500,000.00)
Tra nsfers/adiustments
At 30fr June 2022 13s,070,s36.00 3,445,200.00 1,138,357.20 36,429,629,54
Depreciation
Disposals
Impairment
Transfer/adiustment
At 30 lune 2O22
At l July 2022

135,070,535.00 3,445,200.00 1,138,357.20 36,429,629.58
135,070,s36.00 3,445,200.00 1,138,357.20 36,429,629.54 L76,O43,722.7a

Additions 12,780,000.00 12,780,000.00
Disposals
At 30 June 202:l 3,445,20O.00
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20. Disposal on Asset

Description

Transfer PPE to Asset disposal
alc

2022-2023
(Kshs.)

202t-2022
(Kshs.)

40,500,000

Lessr Salvaqe value (2,2t2,O00)

Loss on disposal 38,288,000
Add: Cost on disposal 181,238

Loss on disposal 38,469,238
There was no disposal in the financial year.

2L. Financial Rask Management
The entity's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks which is credit and risks' The
company's overall risk management programme focuses on unpredictability of changes in the
business environment and seeks to minimise the potential adverse effect of such risks on its
pefformance by setting acceptable levels of risk.

The company's financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:

(i) Credit risk
The entity has exposure to credit risk, whlch is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to
pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits
with banks, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments.

Management assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or
external assessment in accordance with limits set by the directors. The amounts presented in
the statement of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated
by the company's management based on prior experience and their assessment of the
current economic environment.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing the
entity's maximum exposure to credit risk without taklng account of the value of any collateral
obtained is made up as follows:

The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue
trading. The credit rlsk associated with these recelvables is minimal and the allowance for
uncollectible amounts that the company has recognised in the financial statements is

considered adequate to cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts. The board of directors
sets the company's credit policies and objectives and lays down parameters within which the
various aspects of credit risk management are operated.

(ii) Capital Risk Management
The objective of the entity's capital risk management is to safeguard the Board's ability to
continue as a going concern.
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e enuty capital structure comprises of the following funds:

l) Related Party Balances

Neture of related party rclationshlps

Govemment of Kenya.

(vi) CurrencY

The Financial Statements are presented in Kenya Shilli

Entlties and other partles related to the entity lnclude those parties who have ability to

exercise control or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions'

Related parties include management personnel, their associates and

Close family members.

TheNationalGovernmentAffirmativeActionFundisaSemi-AutonomousGovernment
A;;il;;J;, th. rrlinirt,y or puori. seruice and Gender Affairs. Its utrimare parent is the

The entity is related to
i) The Natlonal Government;
ii) The Parent Ministry;
iii) Key Management;
iv) Board of Directors;

b Relat€d transactions
2021-2022

rchs.

c) Kgy manag€ment remuneratlon
2022-2023 202L-2022

Kshs. Kshs.
13 610 13 700 449

(iv) Events after the reporting period

Therewerenomaterialadjustingandnon.adjustingeventsafterthereportingperiod'

(v) Ultlmate and Holding Entity 
l

)

n9s )s

'25

2022-2023 202L-2022
Kshs.Kshs.onDetcrl

676 824 4901 t75884 9t4
Rebined earnings/
accumulated su lus

2022-2023
Kshs.Iretalls

2 945185 8222 000186 000rties'Transfers from related
2 629368 50988s 920 038Transfers to related parties

D€talls
sesDlrectors'

Ksh



Nstlonrl Government Aflirmative Action Fund
Annurl Roport and Financial Statements
For the yerr ended June 30' 2023

20. Appendices

Appandlx I: Ptogress on ,ollow up of Audltor Recommendatlons
ftiJfott*rtng ls the simmary of lssues ralsed ln the financial year 202L/2022 by the external auditor, and

managemenl comments provlded to the auditor. The Fund has nominated focal persons to resolve the various

issueias shown below with the associated tlme frame in which we expect the lssues to be resolved,

It'ur /
Obscrvrtlon,
fiom Audftoi

Fallure to charg€
depreciatlon on
property, plant
and eq

Mrnlgam6nt @mmcnt3

/ Management fast-tracking the Asset
Pollcy document for lmPairment.

Statusi

In progress 30 June 2023

Tlme
f.amc

Inaccuracles ln
the Cash & Cash

ivalent

r' Management wrote to countles to
clear the stale cheques,

Resolved

Unsupported r' The lnvolce from KSG received and
Reso

ble

r' The provlsion wd an accumulated
tigure for several Periods

N/A

N/A

Resolved

/ The Fund has already made
submlsslon before Parllamentary
Committee and have already resolved
several lssues

In progress 30 June 2024

ld Offlcer

alq

a

lt

:l
iI

iI
I,l

R.ibllnc.
]{o, on th.
artarnal

ludlt R.tort

NGAAF

1202U2022(3)

G l?tuitl _

Othsr mt

Unsupported
provision for

atters

oate:..11 o

26



tional Government Aflirmative Action Fund
orts and Financial Statements
the Period ended June 30, 2023

pendix tI: Projects Implemented by the Entity

Construction of Safe House in Nairobi County which is at 640lo complete

Construction to completion of Tabaka and Nyacheki markets in Kisii County.

Construction of Child Rescue Centre at Taita Taveta County which is at 20olo complete.

However, construction of the administration block is at 70olo completion.

Construction of Mombasa Sexual and GBV Centre at Mwakirunge, Kisauni Constituency

which is at 13olo

Construction to completion of girls' dormitory (100 bed capacity) at Kisima Day Mixed

Secondary in Samburu County.

Started construction of Ramba modern market shed in Kabondo which is at 20olo

Started construction of market shed at Kitiini B Market in Murangh county which is at

30o/o

Construction to completion of 9M high water tower and perimeter wall at Kabirirsang

Alcohol Drug Abuse Rehabilitation centre in Nandi County

27



Netional Government Allirmative Action Fund
Reports and Financial Statements
For the Period ended June 30, 2023

Appendix III: Inter-Entity Transfers

10 01 2023
0z 2023 s32 500 000

13 06 023
1

0
Total : _2-, oo

The above amounts have been communicated to and reconciled with the parent Ministry

Head of Finance
NGAAF

Sign:

Head of Accounting Unit
State Department for Gender

Sign:
.&.

ENTITY NAMEI
Break-down of Transfers from the state Department for Gender

FY 2()2212023

Indicate the FY
to whlch the
amounts relate

a Recurrent Grants
Bank
Statement Amount

Sta rtment fo I Gender 23 06 2023 56 000 000
Total 55 ooo ooo

Develo ment Grants
Bank
Statement Amount

State De rtment for Gender

b

2()2212023

State Deoartment for Gender 532,500,000
State DeDartment for Gender
State DeDartment for Gender
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EMERGENCY TO COUNTIES - AT{NEX I
s No. i Coun Name 2nd uartert-
1 I Barin
2 Bu a

1

1

000 000.00
000 000.00

1p0q,00qoq

1 000 000.oo
000 000.00

000.00
L00 000.00 r

o00 000.00

3 I Embu
4 tEt o Markwet 1,000,000.00ia

Garissa 000 000.00 000 000.001
6

7)

13

74

15

1B

19

20

__l,QQ0-0
Homabay 00.00

,1.0_00_,000.q0

q1q/000.Q0

99,375.00
000 000.00

_ 999,760.00

Loo0,000.00
000 000.00

-l

1 000 000.00 000 ofir.oo

000 firo.00
630 o00.oo

Isiolo
B Ka iado
9 ,Kericho
1_0

11

Kilifi
Krrinya qa

000 000.00 9 375.OO
oo0 000.00
999 760.OO

. _ 1,000,000.0 oo 000.oo

1

112_ l(ili! -1-
Kisumu
Kitui
Krvale

n 1 0,

_tp9
1

1

2,000,000.00 i16 ,ra
17 'Lamu

iktpla __ 1,000,000.00

_ __l_qqg000 00
- - : -L9o9,QqQ49i- l 1,00O,0O0.0O i

Ma-cI?!qs_ _
M kqe-ni

l'landera
Itla rsa bit
Meru

iMi

i _ 1,000,0

l0q0,0
00.00
00.00

000 000.00

000 000.00
1,000,000.00 ,000.00

00,000.00 3 000 000.00

- !,90Q, Oill.OO I

1 000 000.oo
_ ._L000,oo0.0 ,

1,qgo,,o-qq..0-o- l

1

. 1,000,000.Q0

i-l- 1,000,000.00

_Lqqo,000.00

_-1,0
71

122
, l: n 1,0

oo0 000.oo
1 000 000.00

lst uarter 3rd uarter uarter total4th

24 luluranda _- 1,000,000 0oT
00 000.00
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25 Nakuru
Narok

000 000.00
1,000,000.00
1.000,000.00
l-qQq,QQq.0q

000 000.00
000 000.00 i

000 000.00
000 000.00

1

1

+
ndarua

amira

i

i
!

o00.00
1 ooo 000.00

-11999,
o00.00

000 000.00
fi)o ooo.o0

n

Samburu 1

1

1

I 0qq000.00

000 000.00

I 000 000.00

Tana River

Tharaka Nithi
Trans Nzoia

___ 1,000,0qq .00
000.00

Turkana
Wa 1f

26

27
28
29
30
31

32
33
34
35

36

000.001,000,
1,0o0,o00.00
I 000 ooo.oo

ooo,oo
2,0o0,0oo.oo
1,q1o,o00.00West Pokot

TOTAT i3 000
1 000 000.00

ooo.00 31,629 135.00 000.00 9 000 000.oo1 oo0 135.OO
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REPUELIC OF KENYA

sEc A/c - BANK RECONCTLTATtON

As 4t.,.. 3O-Jun-23 Statlon: Natlonal Govt Afflrmative Action Fund (NGAAF)

Balance as per Cash Book

AMOUNT Kshs

I ce^ify that I have verlfied thd Bank Balance ln the Cash Book wirh rhe Bank Staternent
and thst the rero.oclllatidh,istorrect. -,t) n, 14#"t-4.. {{'Z
Slgnature ---' Desi8nation

F.O.30

S lrs (15

Jt'25,812,q93

2,103,857.90

3 36,104,00

24,O44,739.19

(/il

I

Balrnce as r Bank Certiflcaie

Slls. cts

Less:1 Payments ln Cash Book not yet

recorded in BBnk Statement 2,103,857.90

Receipts in Bank Statement not
yet recorded in Cash gook ,.....,..

Pa ents in Bank Statement notAdd:

et recorded ln Cssh Book........ 336,104.00

Receipts in Cash Book not yet

Recorded ln Bank Statement

DATE P.V NO

PAYMENTS IN CASH BOOK NOT IN BANK STATEMENT

DETAILS

6lZ/2023 625 W,Vat -KSG tution fee (Komora)
51212023 533 Pay as per schedule OSA clalm

2,080,00

Roy Sasaka Telewa 12,600.00
4,900 0o

aTitus E

Edwa rd Omondi

4,900.00 22,400.00
2310612023 674 Payrol Deductlons- June

Ita zin a Sacco
,2023

11,63 4.60
Hazina Sacco 120,000.00

30, i 88.00Ukullma Sacco

Jamil Sacco 33,118.90
Kltr,ii Teachers Sacco 2,980.00
Tra nsn atlon Sacco 6,060.00
Cooperatlve Ban k of Ken a

Eq uity Ba nk
8).,7 49.44

10s,889.00
Afr lcan Caplta I Ltd 960.00
Fau lu Kenya Ltd 19,813.00

'_1



20,127 .0oSelect Mgt Services
I82,628.00Kenya women Finance trust ltd
31,223.00lzwe Loans l(enya Ltd
24,773.00Premier Kenya Ltd
4,353.00Helb

690,436.9014,940.00Britam
681 Pay as schedule -lnterview Dinner26

21.,840.00

13,440,00Cloria Wekes,
G r'ace Nzula

Roy Sasaka Telewa

sam uel KLrmba 21,600.00

21,6C0.00

13,440.00serah M uchun a

13,440.00Dorothy Ye o
13,440.00
13,440.00s lvia M uthon i Nd

Abdiriza l( lssa

7,560.00Edward Omondi Odhiambo
147,360.007,560.00Tltus Et an

21,000,0027 2023 691 Florence Kiriiny a Honoraria June,2023
.26,520.00nsesFrancls and Mun al ente023 59277

023 69327

694

i Devani Llmited- Fuel

Govcrment Advertisin enCY

Ram

27 023

PaV as per schedule- Ka.ilado DsA clalm2023 6953

Abigael Wambua
Jackson (aya a

I

168,40O.00

2 0.5,04 5.00

16,800.00

16,800.0c
9,800.00Mau rice Kilonzo
8,000.00 51,400.00

59/2023

Reuben Kenlboi

l)avid Kloko

Clalm Schedu le

Nlcholas Maith a

12,200.00

2,40C.OO

2,400.00

25,820.00Abubakar Nyondo

Linda Ma ng'o ngo

Milurice KilonTo 6,300.00
2,520.00

697 es schedule -lntervlew Dlnn€rP3 /2023
Roy sasaka Telewa 43,680.00

4b;320.00samuel Kumba

G race Nzula 43,200.00

26,B80.00
2 6,880 00
2 5,8 80.C0

26,880,00

Serah M uchLln a

Doroth Ye o

G loria Wekesa

Abdlriza k lssa
15,120.00Edward omondi

Maureen Che ruto
Titus Etyan

22,680.00

15,120.00
2 2,6 80.00

.ic nip her Mghoi
93,380.00

698120213
ions Data t.td_Vois Sorvi.e

eh soH D sL do u o noN/ nu

I)imons700612O2?1

a@TI

E

I

t
I

IIII

I
I

310,320.00

?29,A24.OO

W,Vat 2%
4,032 00 233,855.00



a

il

10J0s12023 Commlttee

TOTAI
2,Lo3,857.90

7 10 Pr I IIv uch€d c P tla lam nt€

Ali Abdslla M uwa

lsaac N

Brian Kochwa
56,000.00

5,040.00

44,800.00

105,640.00

YM N EAt{ STK TEMA NENT OT VET ER Rco D ED N cAs BH KooTE P.V NO

064 nKe t 5 nno ta o Ln mI ed

DETAITS

TOTAI

AMOUNT

336,104.00
336,104.00
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CENTRAL BANK A/C. BANK RECONCILIATIOI{

a8 al .,.. 30.Jun-23

It e

AYMENTS IN CASH BOOK NOT IN BANK STATEMENT
DLI AlLS AMOUNT

t

1l

Statlont National Govt Affirrna!;vo /r(:rton i.und (NGMF)
l{airobi ll s-f

Shs Cts Shs lslc

I cerliry thst I havo veritied th(: Bank Bal8nce in tho cash Book wi(h tlrc Ba,rk slirl,:r ir, ,ri: ,,,,.r rn;jt l]e
8nd r€conctll8t,on i

a.:.'

s Cof ,-) :t
...,y':l.t./.t::
Dbsittnttbtl

'1,711,388,1r'i.: il ,

-LI1LJq!.'7, io

D{tle

-l

Shs. cts
Balanc6 as per Bank Certilicale

L!tr: I

Add:

Frymsnts ln Cash Book not yet

rgcoded ln Bank Statgmenl

Rocorpts ir-1 Bailk titaloment not
yet recorded ln Cash Uook .....

Payment6 in llani( Stat€ment not
yet rEcordod ln Cash Book..,.....

8oc.lpts in Cash BoOk not yat

EfOrUeO ln Bank Statsmcnt..
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2116799968
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205 t9t06,12023 19t06'n013 FT23l703X5DN Outward RTGS Pryrncnl MT 102 I,68t,?43 50 0-00 1.662.391.676.50

231677 tt16

STATE DEPT FOR GENDER:CBK

I-AIKIPIA AFFIRMATIVE A S.DF-V
FUND

t
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r,655Jtt,r76.504,E70,5U).00 o-ix)orfir.td RTGS L,,Ett MT l@}9filf,/m23 FT23l76RF66fr1 t9t06r'm23

23t6,49tu

STATE DEPT FOR. GENDET.OK

CA.R,ISSA AFFIRMANVE A.SDEV
I'UND

nrc/23 r 6749504

629

1,7u,3tt,t76.5056,(m,m.m0.mTRFS PeymsFrz! l?4K?HRX2yo$m23 2tD$m212(B

sTDl479

Totrb 8?5,l)515a3.15 2,r85,000,m.c.
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